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[image: hampton]It officially started June 1, 2016, with six adults: the Coco’s, the Wallace’s and the Moody’s but over the course of the next six months, God began to 
grow our fellowship from the six to forty-six.  We began at the 
Hampton Inn located in Providence/Mt Juliet and for the next 
year our ministry not only engaged those that would eventually 
call 318 home but hotel guests and hotel staff as well.  Our first 
Easter in 2017 signaled a change was coming.  God blessed us that 
day with 130 people our first Easter Sunday and saw two people give their lives to Jesus that morning.
[image: baptisms]2017 became a year of firsts: Darrin Chiarizzio became our first Worship Pastor, followed by first baptisms, first baby dedication, first mistakes, first overdraft, first intern and first steps in connecting to the community by joining the Wilson County Baptist Association and the Tennessee Baptist  Convention.  47 people joined the 318 Fellowship on Membership Sunday, January 29, 2017.  And by the end of the first year we had baptized 7 adults and teenagers, met our budget and began to wonder about where we would go next.

[image: seniors]If 2017 was about first, 2018 was about new starts.  We started meeting at the Mission Mobilization Center on John Hagar road that Easter.  We started men’s ministry, women’s ministry, kidz worship and hired a full-time Student Pastor to minister to the 22 teenagers that had found 318.  We graduated our first seniors and started meeting every Wednesday night because we now had space.  It was in 2018 that the word “Family” really began to be used.  It was challenging year but God was deepening our roots and our connections.  






[image: prayer warriors]It was a year of prayer because we had spent a number of months in 2018 recruiting prayer warriors to hold our arms up as we continued to move forward.  What started as a dream of recruiting 100 prayer warriors quickly evolved into 318 from six countries and 13 states.  Each quarter these men and women and their prayer groups prayed for our church specifically and intentionally and honestly, it was what got us through a trying stretch. 






2019 became a year of Next Steps.  For three and half years, our people have started each service with two things: our Vision and the Scripture we are memorizing that months.  Our Vision: We seek to be a people who reflect Jesus Christ by Growing in our Relationship with Him, Aiming to prove Him in Word and Deed and Truth so that Other may Experience Lifechange through Jesus.  And our verse to kick off the new year is Ephesians 4:1, “I therefore, a prisoner for the Lord, urge you to walk in a manner worthy of the calling to which you have been called.”  We prayed for a breakout year when we see the Holy Spirit doing something unexplainable because we day by day seek to walk in the center of His will.
	And then came 2020, and as with most of us, it brought its own set of challenges.  Though we hired a new Student Pastor, he walked into the Covid-19 pandemic but we persevered.  Our numbers grew a little and our presence online expanded.  We found ourselves trying to do more to connect outside the normal lines whether that was Facebook or events like Circle the Wagons in a local parking lot or the Progressive Staff House to House drive bys.  It’s been a challenging year but God has blessed mightly.  
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Barton’s Creek Baptist Church Historical Outline
The Barton’s Creek Baptist Church, located just a few minutes southwest of downtown Lebanon and near the headwaters of Barton’s Creek, was organized April 21, 1849 with four charter members; W.P. Wilburn, Mary Johnson, R.S. Wilburn and Nancy Wilburn. The church was organized in what was known as the Clemmons School House. Elijah Maddox, John Bond, and a man identified only as Brother Muse helped with the organization. A new church was built in 1896 and Elijah Maddox served as the first moderator.

By 1850 Barton’s Creek Church, having grown from four to fifty members, became a member of the Salem Association and remained until 1888 when the church joined the New Salem Association. A call was extended to the Baptist churches in Wilson County and messengers meeting at the Lebanon Baptist Church, May 23, 1921, organized what is now known as the Wilson County Baptist Association. The first delegates were J.W. Johnson, J.H. Johnson, Elzie Merritt, J.C. Floyd, and M.R. Ligon. 

In 1921, J.H. Johnson deeded one acre of land in front of the church for a cemetery.
Until February 1934, services were held on the third Saturday & Sunday of each month. In October 1944, the church voted to go to “Full-Time” services.

A mission work began on the west side of Lebanon in an old service station. Sunday School was led by Charlie Tatum and Wendell Price preached in the afternoon. This was the beginning of Immanuel Baptist Church. 

On October 15, 1950, the church voted to build a parsonage, and Bro. Cannie Leonard  & family were the first to live in it. 

In 1960 - a new Educational Building was built.

In 1964 – the Fellowship Men’s Sunday School Class was given permission to build a fellowship building. It’s used as classrooms today.

On June 6, 1965 – a new sanctuary was planned. B. Ray McCarley, Joe Reed, Ezra Manning, Raymond Dedman & Ham Johnson were the Building Committee. On March 28, 1971, ground breaking was held for construction of a new sanctuary and it was completed in August 1971.

Bro. E. Donald Dorris led the building on a new fellowship hall in 1984, which is much used and enjoyed today.

New stained-glass windows were added in August 2001 to the sanctuary.

A pavilion was built and dedicated in memory of Houston & Mattie Moore McCartney in May 2005.





Those who have served as Pastors

W.P. Wilburn. 1849-1857					N.M. Green, 1858-1859
John Phillips, 1859-1867					J.C. Brien, 1867-1870
J.S. Rice, 1870-1872						Wilburn Barton, 1872-1873
J.C. Brien, 1873-1874						Lewis Lindsley, 1874-1876A.E. Johnson, 1876-1879						G.A. Ogle, 1879-1882
A.E. Johnson, 1882-1885					John S. Rice, 1885-1891
W.J. Couch, 1891-1892					W.P.D. Clark, 1892-1901
S.N. Fitzpatrick, 1901-1904					T.L. Fuqua, 1904-1907
A.E. Johnson, 1907-1908					A.D. Roberson, 1908-1912
J.H. Grime, 1912-1914					C.S. Dillon, 1915-1916
George Ramsey, 1916-1917					W.J. Watson, 1917-1921
G.W. Ramsey, 1921-1926					J.C. Stewart, 1927-1929
Floyd Stark, 1929-1931					P.W. Carney, 1931-1935
Hoyte Huddleston, 1935-1943				Wendell Price, 1943-1948
Buford M. Bull, 1948-1951					Roger Sharrock, Apr-Dec. 1951
Cannie Leonard, 1952-1959					Billy DeVasher, 1959-1962
Hoyte Huddleston, 1962-1970				John C. Evans, 1970-1971
Fred James (interim), 1971-1972				Wilbert Taylor, 1972-1980
E. Donald Dorris, 1981-1986					W.L. Baker(Interim), 1986-1987
W. Kenneth Griffin, 1987-1996				W.L. Baker(Interim), 1996-1997
Mike Cantrell, 1997-1999					W.L. Baker(Interim), 1999-2000
Charles P. McKnight (Interim), 2000-2001			Terry W. Cathey, 2001-2014
Charles P. McKnight, 2014-2016				Jason S. Harlin, 2016-2020
Joshua M. Brown (Interim), 2020-Present












Big Springs Baptist Church
Pastor: Winfrey Jewell
Established: 1985
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HISTORY OF CALVARY BAPTIST CHURCH
Calvary Baptist as we know it today began on August 1st, 1976 through a meeting of seven members of a Sunday School Class at a borrowed building called Faith Rescue Mission. The Next Sunday August 7th, 1976 there were 51 present for the first Sunday School meeting. Bro. W. L. Baker was gracious enough to lead this group through these first services. Bro. Baker’s first sermon was on Aug. 22, 1976.  We borrowed several chairs from a local funeral home, Nave’s East Side Funeral Home, belonging to Jewell Nave. The first piano was donated as well by Mrs. F. M. Kelly. On December 19, 1976, we named our church Calvary Baptist Church.
A special meeting was called for on March 20th, 1977 and Calvary Baptist Church was organized with 34 Charter members. This group of people went out on Faith and sent three men to try to purchase some land on Sparta Pike that was selling at auction. These men did indeed buy 7 acres about three miles Southeast of Lebanon on Sparta Pike. God richly blessed this congregation and this land was paid in full about 7 months later. A building committee was appointed in September 1978 and with monies first contributed by our young people and a loan secured from Liberty Bank land was broken on our property for a new building. The building committee was Bro. Harry Taylor who drew the first building plans, James Dillard, a professional builder and Eugene Murray. On Christmas Eve, December 24th, 1978 we held our first service in this new building, although it wasn’t complete at the time, we just couldn’t wait.
Our first pastor was Bro. W. L. Baker, second was Bro. Jack Gulledge, and our first full time pastor was Bro. Billy Roberson. We have had 20 pastors since that time.  Now serving as our 22nd pastor is Bro. Terry Carver. We believe now as did those before us that we are here only to do service to our God through Jesus Christ in this community and through our Cooperative Program a message of the hope of Jesus Christ to the entire world. [image: ][image: ][image: ]


Cedar Creek Baptist Church

	The present Cedar Creek Baptist Church was constituted January 25, 1885 by a presbytery consisting of Elders T.J. Eastes, H.Y. Tomlynson, and Z.A. Lyons with 31 members. Elder Eastes was pastor of Shop Springs Baptist Church, Elder Tomlynson was pastor of Athens Baptist Church and Elder Zack Lyon had been ordained at Athens in 1879. The church building stood on a hill about a mile northwest of the present site, and only a country graveyard marks this spot now called old Cedar Creek Hill.

	The Missionary Baptist met on the second Sunday to worship and the Primitive Baptist on the 4th Sunday of each month. The first pastor chosen was Elder J.R. Hearn. Elder Hearn was born near Watertown, TN. He was a fine revivalist and one of the strongest Baptist to be found anywhere. Elder Hearn was ordained to the ministry in 1874. However, his ministry would only span about 10 years. Ill health forced him to retire and he died of the dreaded disease consumption June 30, 1889. He served as pastor at Cedar Creek from 1885 to 1886.

	In 1921, the church voted to purchase land for a new building within a three-fourth mile radius of the old church on the hill. A site was secured for the sum of $87, and wood was sold from the ground for $10.50. Total cost of the new building was $1,765.77. On March 12, 1922, the first services were held in the new building with Bro. W.J. Watson preaching.

	The church building has seen many renovations and additions over the years. Electric lights were first installed in 1940 and additional Sunday school rooms were built on the north side of the building in 1946. From 1952 until 1999 porches, a fellowship hall, and Sunday school rooms were added to the original church to give us the building that we have today. During this time, the auditorium was also updated to make it as efficient as possible. The most recent auditorium renovation was in 2018 when we repainted, replaced the lighting and ceiling tiles.

1985 WE CELEBRATED OUR 100TH BIRTHDAY!!!

	In May, 2014, we were honored to dedicate a playground for our children that were purchased by the family or Horace & Evelyn Scarlett. They were members of our church for years and very active in supporting the children of our church. Their family wanted to honor them at the church they loved so much. The playground equipment has been a true memorial to them.

	We also have a volleyball court on our church grounds that are in memory of one of our beloved members. Larry Blackburn was a very active member of our church who loved the children and youth of our church so much. His family wanted to do something at the church that the youth could use on a regular basis. The volleyball court was dedicated on September 17, 2017.

	We have had the privilege at Cedar Creek to have many wonderful pastors over the years. At this time in our history we are grateful that one of our beloved pastors from 25 years ago has come back to us. Bro. Mike Shelby served as our pastor from 1995 until July 1999. We are blessed by God that on February 2, 2020 he returned to us as our full time pastor. During his service those many years ago, our church grew and thrived. We know that the same will be true this time also.

	Cedar Creek has been blessed over the years to have generation after generation to continue to come here. We have been blessed in ways that only come from God.
Fairview Church History

The idea of a Missionary Baptist Church in North West Lebanon started in the spring of 1946, when Bro. W.B. Woodall and Mr. H. Bennett were riding around looking for a place on which they could put the associational tent for a revival meeting.  The lot at the corner of Fairview and Coles Ferry Pike was selected.  The tent was put up on July 27, 1946.  Being the first time the tent was used, it was dedicated for the Lord’s work in the Wilson County Association.  

It was announced that all services would be in the home of Mr. and Mrs. J.G. Hamilton, 732 North Cumberland, because of the cold weather.  This arrangement would continue until the church could be built.

Prayer meeting, November 19, 1947 was the first service in the Hamilton’s home.  There were 29 in attendance.  Ground was broken for the original church building on December 1, 1947.

The deed for the lot for Fairview Baptist Church was transferred by the Trustees of First Baptist Church to the Trustees of Fairview Baptist Church on December 16,1947.  Authority was given to the Trustees to borrow the money necessary to finish the present plan for the church.  December 18, 1947, $2,900 was borrowed at 4% interest.

On January 4, 1948, it was voted that Bro. Allen Buhler, pastor of Montvue Baptist Church in Morristown, TN, be called as full-time pastor.  He served from 1948 until 1971, and led through two building programs and extensive remodeling.  

The church eventually outgrew the available space on Fairview Avenue and a plan was made to purchase land near the intersection of Hartman Drive and Leeville Pike.  In January 2007, the Fairview congregation celebrated their first service in their new building, at 1660 Leeville Pike, Lebanon.

Following Pastor Buhler, Fairview Church has been led these past 50 years, by many godly men, including the following pastors:  David Jicka, Larry Bullard, Bob Old, Earl Baker, Don Pharris, Michael Christian, Jonathan Akin and our current pastor, Brandt Waggoner. 
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Cedar Grove Baptist Church 
Please allow us to take you back 206 years – two centuries ago, and tell you a story of Cedar Grove Baptist Church. On May 15, 1813 Cedar Grove Baptist Church was constituted, by a presbytery, consisting of Elders Josiah Rucks, John Wiseman, John Jones and Thomas Durham. It was situated five and one-half miles north on Greenbrier Rd (now known as Cedar Grove Rd), in Wilson County, Tennessee. Cedar Grove is the fourth oldest Southern Baptist Church in Wilson County. 
Cedar Grove’s first Pastor was Elijah Maddox. Born in Virginia around 1772, he moved to Tennessee in the early part of the 19th century, living in a log cabin near Cedar Grove Baptist Church. He died at 94 and is buried in the Old Tucker Graveyard.
[image: ]
In 1814 Cedar Grove joined the Concord Association. The year of 1842 was known as a great time of Revival at Cedar Grove. During the time of slavery, blacks were also members of the church. Cedar Grove showed there was no room for prejudice, and in 1865 had ninety-nine white members and eighty-five black members. They worked and worshipped together.  
In the 1870’s services were held once a month. If the weather was bad during the winter there would be no meetings for three months. The church was very crude, the seats had no backs and there was no glass in the windows at this time. The church members took turns caring for the “meeting place”.
In 1880, a big brown leather-bound Bible was purchased by the church, to be used by all who held services there. The Bible rested on the Remembrance Table for 135 years. 
A Sunday School was established in May 1883. The same year the church bought lamps. In the 1870’s and 1880’s the Church struggled to pay their pastors for their services, but always helped whenever there was a need. The Baptist orphanage was never forgotten. The faithful that came to worship hitched their horses to sturdy old cedar trees. In those days’ buggies were considered a luxury. 
In 1902 there were 157 members and a new house of worship. In 1909 a pump organ was purchased. Cedar Grove celebrated 100 years in 1913 and in 1921 joined the Wilson County Baptist Association!  
During the depression the church struggled once again, but with the help of God it survived and prospered. In 1944 the first bus ministry started. The same year five new Sunday School rooms were added. In 1947 the Church went to full time preaching, and at this time, a new program was introduced called the “Training Union”. 
Electricity was installed in 1950 and another addition was built. Many servicemen attended Cedar Grove during the Tennessee Army Maneuvers, many conversions were made, and many joined the Church. 
The year 1963 brought Cedar Grove’s 150th Anniversary! The need for a parsonage arose and plans were put into motion and the parsonage was completed in 1965. Bro. Ira W. Suiter and his family were the first to live there. 
A new educational wing, Sunday School rooms and the Fellowship Hall was remodeled in 1973. Bro. Bill Enoch was Pastor at this time. In 1977 a recreational building was added. A Baptistry was installed in 1975. Up until then, the former pastors had baptized in Spring Creek, the Cumberland River or had borrowed another church’s baptistry.  
One of our more entertaining parts of history is the legendary sledding down Cedar Grove hill. People would come from all over Lebanon to take part in the intense slope! Back then there was a barbwire fence right at the end of the hill so timing when to bail was important. There were times when people would have a fire and hot chocolate going over at the parsonage. Ask anyone who has lived around Cedar Grove and they will tell you there’s no better sledding anywhere in the world.
[image: ]
In May 2013 Cedar Grove celebrated its 200th Anniversary! The Church was packed full of members, Pastors – past & present, and the community to celebrate a very special Anniversary. 
On Saturday, February 21, 2015 Cedar Grove Baptist Church started to burn. As members heard of the news, they rushed to the church to gather together as they watched the building disappear into the ashes. Snow covered the ground, the rain started, and so did the tears. It was cold, miserable and unbelievable! Nothing could be saved, not the books in the library or the pictures on the walls. Not even the old Bible on the Remembrance Table.

[image: ]
Talk started about rebuilding immediately. Cedar Grove was without a preacher when the church burned. Bro. Wiley was voted in as Interim Pastor and God would use him to guide us thru the time of rebuilding. Church members were determined that Cedar Grove would “rise from the ashes”.  
But before that we would hold church in a barn. It is an amazing sight to have the barn doors open, seeing the field, and sunlight streaming in behind Bro. Wiley as he preached. Birds would pass by the open doors as he would get excited. We were brought back to a setting more like when the Church first started.
The new building was completed in 2016 and the first service was held on July 31, 2016. The Lord was, is and always will be good!!! Since that time the Church still had some things to get through. Cedar Grove has a new Pastor now, Bro. Jacob Lannom.  
[image: ]
Over the past three years God has been good to Cedar Grove Baptist Church. With over 75 baptisms, ministry is thriving. In 2019 we accomplished a large playground project and purchase a new church van showing off our new logo. With over 200 years of history the church came up with a timeless mandate. At Cedar Grove, our purpose is to love others unconditionally, learn about God increasingly, live to share Jesus intentionally, and lead others to Christ continually. Our ambition is to keep the history of Cedar Grove Baptist Church alive by keeping Jesus Christ at the center of our lives and worship.
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Community
Pastor: Sten Criscoe
Established: 1999
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Crossroads
Pastor: Gary Miller
Established: 2002
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Encounter Church
Encounter Church was founded in January of 2011 by Charlie and Christie White. In the summer of 2010, Charlie and Christie were visiting Lebanon, Tn from their Florida home and sensed God leading them to begin a new church plant, feeling  strongly that the Roxy movie theater would be a great place to meet. In December of that year, a group of approximately 20 interested people met in the back room at Shoney’s to discuss the beginnings of Encounter Church. The first service was held in a member’s basement and by January of 2011, Encounter Church began meeting at the Roxy Theater. For the next nine years, Encounter Church met on Sunday morning at the Roxy Theater, ministered to the local community, and helped develop young leaders to serve in other ministries. In early 2020, due to Covid-19 and other circumstances, current pastor Mark Strickland lead the church to leave the Roxy and begin meeting temporarily at the Wilson Baptist Association while developing an online streaming presence for the church and seeking out a new meeting location as God leads Encounter Church into the future.















 



Fairview
	The idea of a Missionary Baptist Baptist Church in North West Lebanon started in the spring of 1946, when Bro. W.B. Woodall and Mr. H. Bennett were riding around looking for a place on which they could put the associational tent for a revival meeting. The lot at the corner of Fairview and Coles Ferry Pike was selected. The tent was put up on July 27, 1946. Being the first time the tent was used, it was dedicated for the Lord’s work in the Wilson County Association.
	It was announced that all services would be in the home of Mr. and Mrs. J.G. Hamilton, 732 North Cumberland, because of the cold weather. This arrangement would continue until the church could be built.
	Prayer meeting, November 19, 1947 was the first service in the Hamilton’s home. There were 29 in attendance. Ground was broken for the original church building on December 1, 1947.
	The deed for the lot for Fairview Baptist Church was transferred by the Trustees of First Baptist Church to the Trustees of Fairview Baptist Church on December 16, 1947. Authority was given to the Trustees to borrow the money necessary to finish the present plan for the church. December 18, 1947, $2,900 was borrowed at 4% interest.
	On January 5, 1948, it was voted that Bro. Allen Buhler, pastor of Montvue Baptist Church in Morristown, TN, be called as full-time pastor. He served from 1948 until 1971, and led through two building programs and extensive remodeling.
	The church eventually outgrew the available space on Fairview Avenue and a plan was made to purchase land near the intersection of Hartman Drive and Leeville Pike. In January 2007, the Fairview congregation celebrated their first service in their new building, at 1660 Leeville Pike, Lebanon.
	Following Pastor Buhler, Fairview Church has been led these past 50 years, by many godly men, including the following pastors: David Jicka, Larry Bullard, Bob Old, Earl Baker, Don Pharris, Michael Christian, Jonathan Akin, and our current pastor, Brandt Waggoner.










Faith
Pastor: Raymond Vogtner
Established: 2003
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Fall Creek BAPTIST Church History      1822-2020
As our bi-centennial year approaches, it is appropriate to reflect upon our Church history. On the first Saturday in May 1822, twenty-one men and women met at Copeland's Meeting House on Sherrilltown Road for the purpose of constituting a new church.  The name Falling Creek was chosen by those charter members.  Sometime later it was shortened to Fall Creek.  The members came from several churches.  Smith’s Fork and Union (Hurricane) are mentioned in early records. Early members of Falling Creek included slaves identified in church minutes as “people of color”.  Listings on early church rolls included: Julius Williams’ Judy, by baptism; Widow Alsup’s Phillip, by letter; and several others identified in like manner.  Today there are NO direct descendants of any of the twenty-one charter members active in the church. 
The first half century of life presented many challenges to survival.  The early church adhered to strong Christian principles, and discipline for erring members was strict and often administered in public business meetings. The church faced obstacles forthrightly and sought to Know and Do the will of God and continued to move forward.  Early in the second half century society was less inclined to accept church involvement in discipline and the church moved toward a position of advocating correct moral living in accordance with one’s personal relationship with Jesus Christ. Of course challenges were NOT limited to the first half century, but the way to face them continues to be, “seek to Know and Do God’s will”. From the first location on Sherrilltown Road to the present one purchased in 1881, God’s people (the Church) have taught by word and example the Way of living in the Faith and of no less importance the Way of dying in the Faith.  Jesus Christ, our Savior is THE WAY. 
Fall Creek Baptist 1881 building
[image: ]
From 1822 to the present, the members of Fall Creek have given of their time, talents, and financial means to provide a modern and comfortable meeting house.  Some changes through the years include: expanded educational space (several times); electric lights; restrooms; a kitchen and fellowship hall; baptistry (1969); pastors study; new pews; a steeple; an organ and sound system; carpets and drapes; a library; and a paved parking lot with covered carports and handicap parking; and stained glass windows. The current building is the product of five construction projects; SS rooms in (1953), New Sanctuary (1960), SS rooms and bathrooms (1968), SS rooms and fellowship hall with kitchen (1976), and New fellowship hall (1994).  When the decision was made to replace the 1881 building, men of the Church reverently dis-assembled it and sold salvageable material placing the money in the Building fund. Bro. Carl Price was pastor during this construction project. Another hallmark of Bro. Price’s ministry was adoption of the first set of By-Laws for the Church. In October 1980 a fire in the attic of the sanctuary was sparked while lighting the furnace; a call went out and men of the community came and extracted the pews. The ceiling was destroyed and had to be replaced, otherwise only minor damage was incurred.
God has called and sent many faithful pastors to lead His people.  Elder James Bond, the first pastor, was elected in 1822 and served thirty years. Forty-three pastor/interims have served, some occupying both roles. Elder James Bond was the longest serving pastor (30 yrs) followed by Bro. Billy Trice (28 yrs.), and Bro. John T. Oakley (19 yrs.). The current pastor is Bro. Jim Yates as of September 2018.  Bro. Fred Morgan was elected the first pastor to conduct weekly services in March 1948. Prior to 1948 meetings were held once a month on Saturday and Sunday, and the pastor may serve multiple churches.
 	Michael Eubanks was the first elected Youth pastor (1995) to serve Fall Creek, and Chris Dickens was the most recent and the longest service at 9 years. We are currently seeking a Youth Pastor.
Building on the foundation of Sunday School, Baptist Young Peoples Union (BYPU), and the Women’s Missionary Union (WMU), the witness of the Church has thrived through the ages.  In later years various missionary organizations, Brotherhood, Discipleship Training, youth council and Youth Pastor were added.  Activities for ages from Nursery to Senior Adults are a very present part of our fellowship. In years past an active RA program was available to teenage boys. Some VERY interesting tales have emerged from that organization concerning Snipe hunting and other capers. The WMU sponsored and supported both GA’s and Acteens for the girls, and there was high participation in those programs. Over the years Fall Creek has sponsored and supported sports within the community and the Wilson County Baptist Association.
In the past teens and children have participated in Bible Drill and Speaking Drills. Currently we have an active children’s Bible Drill program.
Vacation Bible School is a yearly week of summertime enjoyment for the children of the Church and the community.  Bible lessons, crafts, and refreshments are enjoyed by pupils as well as teachers, staff, and pastor. Spiritual training has always been the primary goal of VBS, but fun and fellowship for any child who wishes to attend is also a sought after objective. 
Revival has always been a prominent and important annual activity for Fall Creek. The minutes make numerous references to spiritual renewal and resurgence after revival services were concluded. Protracted meeting were common in the early years. Fall Creek was one of the last local churches to conduct day services during revival. Prior to installation of the baptistry, baptisms were done at the “Peggy Hole” on Cainsville road and at the “Rack” on Simmons Bluff Road. Baptisms were usually done once each year at the conclusion of the Revival services.
Highlights of the church year include the Christmas program to celebrate the birth of Jesus, an Easter sunrise service to celebrate His resurrection, and a Thanksgiving dinner to render thanks to God for his bountiful blessings as well as to enjoy a delicious meal and fellowship. In recent years when weather permits, a sunrise service on the hill is conducted and well attended by the whole community. 
When organized in 1822, Fall Creek membership came from the Salem Association; they immediately joined and began active participation and financial support of the organization. The Church remained a faithful and active member of Salem Association until 1921 when the Wilson County Baptist Association was formed. Fall Creek became a member of WCBA and continues that relationship until today. The Church has been an active participant and financial supporter of WCBA during this time.  
Fall Creek has always been mission-minded and has supported mission activity at home and abroad through Tennessee Baptist Convention and Southern Baptist Convention including Golden, Annie Armstrong and Lottie Moon special offerings. For many years Fall Creek has been one of the Top Tier contributors to the Co-Operative program as measured by percent/budget. The Church has an enviable record of responding to local needs and tragedies. From early years until present, meeting minutes record numerous times the Church provided financial support to individuals and organizations in need. The Church has supported “Shoebox” ministry and the “Appalachian backpack” ministry. The Church has been a strong supporter of the Baptist Children Home. Also Direct Funds have been provided to members and former members to support their activities on the mission field, the most recent example being support for one of our current members now on the field. 
In 2013 Fall Creek Baptist Church was incorporated as a Limited Liability Corporation under Tennessee State law.   
Meeting minutes from conference/business meetings record our history. We are fortunate to have a near complete set of meeting minutes since the day the Church was organized. (A copy of older minutes is stored externally in the Wilson County Archives and in the TN State Archives). Throughout the minutes, questions have been addressed with open dialogue including proponents and opponents. Fall Creek has a reputation of coming together in support of the final resolution with opponents sometimes agreeing simply to NOT impede implementation of the result.
May our message always be—JESUS SAVES—and to that end, as we are faithful in our devotion to God and His service, dedicate ourselves to daily living in His will and in development of our youth who are the Church of tomorrow.
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Fall Creek Baptist 2020
In March of 2020, we were forced to close our building to the public by the Covid-19 Pandemic. We adjusted to this inconvenience by moving outside to the parking lot and broadcasting the sermon on low frequency FM and on Facebook. We conducted our Wednesday night prayer meeting by ZOOM. When we moved back into the building for Sunday morning Worship, we wore masks and social distanced as was suggested by health officials. We had a good response to the Facebook broadcast and adopted that as an additional long term ministry.

Fall Creek Pastors 1822-2020
	H.C. Adkins
	J.M.D. Cates
	Dale Huff
	J.M. Phillips
	J.D. Smith
	Williamson Williams

	John Barbee
	James Davenport
	Fred James
	John Phillips
	J.C. Stewart
	Jim Yates (current)

	Greg Bell
	Dan Dozier
	Charles McKnight
	C.C. Ramsey
	V.O. Summar
	

	Ernest Blair
	Morgan Green
	B. McNatt
	George W. Ramsey
	T.A. Thacker
	

	James Bond (first)
	J.H. Grime
	Darwin Milligan
	J.H. Ramsey
	Billy Trice
	

	John Brown
	Carl Halverson
	Fred Morgan
	H.A. Russell
	W.J. Watson
	

	H.T. Burns
	Charlie Harris
	John T. Oakley
	Mike Shelby
	W.E. Wauford
	

	P.W. Carney
	Hunter Hay
	Carl Price
	Don Q. Smith
	Enoch Windes
	Dean Sisk (interim)








Fellowship

Pastor: Tommy Echols
Established: 1987
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First Baptist Church
101 Locust Street
Alexandria, TN 37012

[image: ][image: ]

	The Baptist Church of Alexandria was organized January 22, 1887. The minutes of the New Salem Baptist Association confirm that there were twenty-four organizational members. Those early members listed in our church records include Mrs. S.J. Bethel, Mrs. Maggie Tubbs, Isaac Cooper, Tabitha Cooper, H.H. Jones, Mrs. S.T. Jones, James A. Walker, and Mrs. James A. Walker (Jennie). Mrs. Cora Bell Walker was the first candidate for baptism. She was baptized by Rev. S.N. Sanborn on September 15, 1889.

	According to information obtained from History of Middle Tennessee Baptists by J.H. Grime, the Baptist Church of Alexandria was organized in January 1887, after a public debate between Dr. T.W. Brent, a leader among the Campbellites, and the Elder J.B. Moody, editor of The Baptist Gleaner. The issue of the debate was the differences between Baptists and Campbellites. A large crowd attended, and at the close of the discussion the Baptists decided to organize. On January 22, 1887, twenty-four people from Baptist churches in the surrounding area met in the Cumberland Presbyterian Church building and were constituted into the Baptist Church of Alexandria. They were led by a Presbytery consisting of Elders J.B. Moody, T.J. Eastes, J.M. Steward, and W.C. Grace. 

	[image: ]


The newly constituted group quickly constructed a house of worship and joined the New Salem Association, which was also newly organized on October 30, 1888. The church remained with the New Salem Association until 1928 when it joined the Wilson County Baptist Association. The reason for joining the Wilson County Baptist Association was a matter of convenience. The New Salem Association had grown so large and covered so much territory that messengers were finding it burdensome to attend associated meetings.

	The first house of worship was destroyed by fire, and the church voted October 4, 1913 to build a brick structure at the approximate cost of $5,000.00. Some twenty years later, on August 12, 1933, the members of the Baptist Church of Alexandria adopted a struggling congregation at Upper Helton as a mission. Construction was again underway at the Baptist Church of Alexandria. In 1945, an educational annex was added to the west side of the building. The east wing was added in 1967. On July 3, 1968, the Baptist Church of Alexandria changed its name to First Baptist Church. Then in 1970, the old west wing was torn down, and additional Sunday School classrooms were constructed in the new west wing. The 1913 sanctuary was torn down, and the present auditorium was erected in 1976-1977. The new structure was dedicated April 2, 1977. The church celebrated a note burning on January 10, 1982, with the church debt being paid in full. On December 4, 1985, the church voted to adopt a deacon rotation plan.

	In 1976, disharmony in the church resulted in a number of members requesting that their names be removed from the church roll to become charter members of West Main Baptist Church.
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Bro. Billie Friel is our current pastor and was elected in 2012. Prior to which he served as the 8th interim pastor. The first pastor of First Baptist Alexandria was Bro. J.B. Moody who served from 1887-1889.

	We celebrated our 125th Anniversary in 2012. We created a booklet which listed the pastors, interim pastors, ministers ordained, and ministers licensed as well as the names of all the deacons with the dates of their service listed. The church asked several past members to write a letter telling what First Baptist Alexandria meant to them. We received many letters which were interesting to read and included in the book.

	Our Sunday morning service begins at 10:00 a.m. and evening service at 6:00 p.m. Wednesday night prayer meeting starts at 6:00 p.m. as well as the youth and children’s classes. The church utilizes an automated phone system which allows for prayer requests and church news to be sent out quickly to each member’s phone. We began streaming our Sunday morning service online in March 2020.

	First Baptist Church has a wonderful music program. We purchased a new organ and piano. Our church van is used for various ministries including picking up VBS children, WMU trips to Gatlinburg, day trips for our senior adults and taking our youth groups to Hearts on Fire and Winter Jam.

	We have many ministry activities and outreach opportunities throughout the year. Our church participates in Samaritan’s Purse Operation Christmas Child program. We set up a booth at the DeKalb County Fair where our members distribute tracts, church information and bottles of water. First Baptist Alexandria has a food pantry that is open to the community. The Billy Walker Memorial Fund was started in honor of one of our great deacons to help those in need. The WMU participates in many different programs throughout the year including Christmas in August and City Reach Memphis-Chattanooga.

	This gives you some history of First Baptist Church Alexandria, past and present. As I researched history of the church, I found the following poem that my eight-grade teacher gave me around 1950 that I would like to share with you.

“I Have to Live”

	I have to live with myself and so
	I want to be fit for myself to know.
	I want to be able as the days go by
	Always to look myself straight in the eye.
	I don’t want to stand with the setting sun
	And hate myself for the things I have done.
	I don’t want to keep on my closet shelf
	A lot of secrets about myself
	And fool myself as I come and go
	Into thinking no one else will know
	The kind of person I really am.
	I don’t want to dress myself in shame.
	I have to live with myself and so
	I want to be fit for myself to know.


Lynn Turner
Historian



First Baptist Church Lebanon[image: ]

First Baptist Church of Lebanon was constituted on Saturday,
June 30, 1821, as a branch of Spring Creek Church, which at
that time stood some four miles east of Lebanon on the waters
of Spring Creek. Big Cedar Lick (now Mount Olivet) and other
churches participated the constitution. Of the nine original
members, only  Thomas Edwards and George A. Lucas are
known by name. The first ten years were a struggle for
existence. By 1830, there were only five members, one male and four females. Under the leadership of Elder John Wiseman (1830-1844), the church began to grow and the membershipsoon increased to 80. 
For the first three years of its existence, church services were held in homes or in the Court House. On the 27th day of November, 1824, David Marshall gave three acres “north of the schoolhouse” for the benefit of the Lebanon Baptist Church. This site was probably located on North College Street. A log cabin building was erected.  [image: ]
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In 1849, a brick building was built on
East Main Street at a cost of $7,000.
 
This building stood without change for 62 years. In 1911, the church 
building was remodeled to include two entrances with twin towers. 
The church met in the Court House, while remodeling was in progress. 
A balcony was added to the church in 1946 and the first electric organ
for the church was installed in 1947.
  A new sanctuary was constructed during the years of 1950-1951. June 18, 1950, was the last Sunday in the old church building. Church services were held at Cumberland University, then a Baptist School, until the new building was dedicated on August 19, 1951. In that year a new educational building was erected to the rear of the church and a Wicks Pipe Organ was installed.[image: ]






On October 2, 1966, fire destroyed the sanctuary [image: ]


and educational space to the rear of the sanctuary.
The west wing of the educational space was badly
damaged. Morning worship services were held in 
the parking area.
A new sanctuary, educational facilities, chapel, and 
staff offices were completed in 1968.
In its 200 year history, First Baptist Church 
has never lost sight of its mission to spread the Gospel.
In addition to sending out preachers and missionaries, it has helped sponsor five missions, which resulted in the establishment of Fairview, Southside, Hillcrest, West Hills and Igelsia Renacer Baptist Churches.  
The church has held membership in three associations-Concord, Salem and Wilson County Baptist Association, which was organized in the Lebanon Baptist Church in 1921. The Church has also been a strong supporter of the Cooperative mission efforts of the Tennessee Baptist and Southern Baptist Conventions. 
In 1993, a house was purchased for the use of international missionaries during their stateside assignment. The “missionary house” became a home-away-from-home for many missionary families over the years. After more than two decades, the home was retired from service and sold. The proceeds from the sale were invested to support future mission efforts.
The Church marked its 190th Anniversary in 2011 with a “Servebration.” The year-long community outreach effort sent members into the community to serve alongside other Gospel partners. The Church also hosted community concerts featuring the Youth Choir from First Baptist Church, Atlanta Georgia and the Tennessee Baptist Men’s Chorale.  
The Church celebrated its Bicentennial in 2021. The celebration commenced with the opening of the Sanctuary Cornerstone after 70 years and the contents were displayed in the Welcome Center. A “homecoming” celebration was held on Sunday, June 27th and a community-wide “birthday party” called Light-Up Lebanon followed on Wednesday, June 30th.





First Baptist Church Mt. Juliet

First Baptist Church, Mt. Juliet began with a group of thirteen believers, under the direction of A.W. Lamar on December 30, 1900.  The first building was dedicated June 24, 1905. On December 17, 1944 a new building was dedicated on N. Mt. Juliet Road and B.B. Powers was called as the first full time pastor. The church continued to grow although suffering a fire in 1938 and again in 1946.  The church voted to purchase 37 acres at 735 N. Mt. Juliet Rd. on December 12, 1973.  Ground breaking ceremonies for the new worship center took place November 5, 1978.  This worship center was completed in 1979 along with the first educational building.  Mt. Juliet Christian Academy began that year with grades 1 - 3; eventually adding grades 4 - 12.  In the years following another educational building and the family life center were constructed to accommodate the growth of the church and MJCA.  In 2006 an senior adult independent living facility was added after the church purchased property on Rutland Road.  To provide for the growing children's ministry, a new children's building was built in 2012.  Additional properties have been purchased which expanded the campus to over 60 acres.
On March 3, 2019 FBCMJ was in the direct path of a tornado which damaged our two education buildings and the family life center.  A week later the covid 19 pandemic caused FBCMJ to begin meeting online until it was considered safe to meet again in June of 2019. Under the leadership of Dr. Phillip Dunn the church has moved forward with a capital campaign to build a new 1350 seat worship center which is projected to be completed in 2022.  The renderings for this new facility are below.  As Mt. Juliet and Wilson County have exploded in growth First Baptist, Mt. Juliet continues to take steps to be missional in reaching the lost for Christ as we preach the gospel of Christ and see lives transformed by the power of God.  Baptisms and membership continue to grow even in the midst of the covid pandemic. To God be the glory, great things He continues to do.  
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The History of
First Baptist Church
Watertown, Tennessee
By Jean Dibrell Jennings
OUR BEGINNINGS
There is a tremendous story in the history of any church because we are able to see that God has used more than one pastor or decades of members to do His work in a community. While reading this history you will find that as a church grew in membership through the years, the members always saw the need for new or enlarged facilities and set about solving the problem through expansion or building. 
During the days of the first settlements, a Baptist church was constituted near Grant in Smith County on July 2, 1803, and the name given the new church was Round Lick because of its location on a creek by that name. There were sixteen members listed in the Constitution. 
In June 1820 they moved up the creek about ten miles to a site one mile north of the growing settlement of Three Forks (later renamed Watertown) at the headwaters of Round Lick Creek. They met in a log house called the Bass Meeting House, and after considerable prosperity the house was soon too small. In March 1821 a committee was appointed to supervise the enlargement of their "meeting house," as it was called. 
The year 1837 saw the church split on the doctrines that distinguished the Primitive Baptist from the Missionary Baptist, and the Missionary Baptist, being in the minority, were left without a home. They met in a grove a short distance down the creek for open-air services during the summer of 1838 and in various homes the following winter. 
In November 1838 a new house of worship was built in the grove that furnished the summer meeting place. It was on what was the road to Commerce at the time (currently owned by Don Simpson) on the north boundary of the land and on the east side of the creek. The building was 30 by 40 feet, painted white, and known for its beauty at the time. 
During 1856 the membership saw the need for a new house of worship on the turnpike. Four acres of land were purchased and $900 raised toward building the new church. A new 40 by 60 foot frame building was then built on the present site of Round Lick Baptist Church and was occupied by the congregation until 1903 when the original portion of the present brick building was built. 
At a Round Lick conference held December 14, 1902, after much consideration of the growth and development of the town, it was decided that the Baptist cause would best be served by building a new house of worship near the center of Watertown. At that time 124 letters were granted for the purpose of organizing a new Baptist church and a council composed of elders. J. M. Phillips, T. J. Estes, M. W. Russell, W. E. Raikes, H. Whitefield, and E. S. Bryan were elected. A lot was purchased for $1,100 for the location of the new church, which was built at a cost of approximately $5,000. The new building was dedicated January 31, 1904, with the Reverend W. C. Golden preaching the dedication sermon. The church went to full-time preaching in 1913. 
On February 10, 1924, the Frist Baptist Church of Watertown was organized, constituted of the membership of the Watertown church and 55 members from Round Lick Baptist Church. Then on March 2, 1924, the new church voted to erect a house of worship, and construction was begun in January 1925 with the first meeting held in the basement on November 22, 1925. The first service in the auditorium was held on February 28, 1926. The cost of the building, excluding pews and chairs, was $27,992.12.
Approximately $18,000 of this total was borrowed. The new building contained two auditoriums, a balcony, a baptistry, a prayer meeting room, pastor's study, Sunday School office, four departmental rooms, eighteen Sunday School classrooms, two restrooms, and a kitchen. The members felt with these facilities, opportunities to serve the Lord were unlimited. 
It should note that tithes, offerings, and gifts built the first and second house of worship; the first, second, and third pastoriums; installed the air conditioning system; and restored and improved the present house or worship in 1967 and 1968. During this time the needs of the regular church expenses and missionary programs were always met, a fact that the membership was quite proud of. 
OUR MILITARY
During World War II, Watertown First Baptist Church saw 27 of its young men, whether by volunteer or draft,join the Armed Services of the United States of America. Of that number, five gave their lives. 
During World War II, Army maneuvers were held in Middle Tennessee, and hundreds of servicemen visited Watertown First Baptist Church during those days. They would file in, sit in the balcony, and when the song service began, it was impossible not to be moved by their singing of the old hymns. Looking in their faces, one knew they were thinking of home. When the morning service was over, some of the servicemen could be found standing on front of the church with the hope that one of the church ladies would extend an invitation for Sunday dinner at her home, and the ladies never disappointed them. The dinner was important, but just listening to them talk about home meant so much to those young men. 
A souvenir was left during the practice maneuvers held in Watertown for our church people when an Army tank made a short tum on the northeast corner of the building, hit it, and chipped out a piece of brick about the size of an unhulled walnut, about three feet from the ground. 
OUR PASTORS
Watertown Baptist Church
	J.M. Phillips
	1902-1907

	L.S. Ewton
	1907-1911

	J.W. Foster
	1911

	J.B. Moody
	1912-1915

	J.T. Mason
	1915-1917

	E.A. Cox
	1917-1923


First Baptist Church
	R.T. Skinner
	1924-1926

	T.G. Davis
	1927-1929

	J.A. Brannon
	1930-1932

	G.G. Graber
	1933-1938

	C. Eldon Wright
	1938-1943

	H.R. Anderson
	1944-1947

	C. Eldon Wright
	1947-1951

	H.T. Brown
	1952-1955

	Joe M. Stother
	1956-1961

	Ray Mabey
	1962-1966

	Conrad Cato
	1966-1969

	Tom Suiter
	1969-1972

	E.W. Greenwall
	1972-1978

	Keith Page
	1978-1983

	Bill Enoch
	1983-1993

	Tim Crosby
	1994-1999

	Don Mathis
	2001-present



Ministers of the Gospel Ordained by Our Church
	Fred T. Evans
	August 5, 1917

	J.T. Barbee
	October 5, 1924

	Floyd Starkes
	July 4, 1926

	John D. Barbee
	August 29, 1926

	Luther Joe Thompson
	August 28, 1938

	O.W. Lassater
	May 12, 1946

	Ronald Smith
	November 17, 1968



ORGANIZATIONS 
The church organizations have flourished through the years and continue to do so. Starting with Sunday School, Morning Worship Service, Baptist Young Peoples Union, and the Evening Worship Service, these were the first established programs of worship. Weekly prayer service was begun on Wednesday evenings for a time to meet and worship. 
Sunday School classes were called Nursery, Beginners, Primaries, Juniors, Intermediates, Young People, and Adults. Each Christmas the younger children in the Sunday School would present a Christmas program and had a gift exchange. As a gift from the church to each of them, as well as the shut-ins and the elderly, a small brown paper sack containing an apple, an orange, two or three nuts, a piece of chocolate candy, and a candy cane were handed out. During those days receiving this gift from Santa Claus was quite an occasion. 
When a need arose for a teacher in a class, volunteers stepped in, and the problem was solved. An example of this is the service of Verdie Hudson who served as teacher of the Fidelis Class for 50 years until her health failed, and Allie Mai Lamberson who served for many years as a teacher in the Beginners Class. 
A TIME OF REVIVAL 
Baptist churches in the South have always looked for ways to come together in Christian fellowship, and revivals have played an important role to fulfill this need. This was a special time to present the gospel to the lost and welcome new Christians into the church. A revival date was needed to be made known to the community so that only one church at a time would be participating. All denominations in the community practiced this and cooperated fully. Our church decided in later years that our revival date would be the second Sunday in July and would last one full week, but if souls were being saved, we would continue as long as needed. There were two services each day, one being in the morning and the other an evening service. The morning service was attended mostly by the women on the church with some of the men able to leave their place of business long enough to attend this short service. The evening service was family oriented with a nursery provided so that the adult members could participate in this special time of worship. The visiting evangelist usually stayed with the present pastor and his family in the pastorium. The song leader was most likely from a surrounding community and commuted to our church. The ladies provided food for our visiting preacher, and it was rumored that when the revival was over there was not a chicken to be found in our area.
During the 1959 revival, the Lord was present and the Holy Spirit was working in our midst. Between I 1 p.m. and 12 midnight one evening, the Watertown night policeman came to the church to see if we were alright, and to his amazement we were still worshipping. It was a night to remember with decisions being made.
Vacation Bible School was a special time in the life of our church during the summer when the children came together for VBS. It took place in the morning with the church women acting as teachers. The children gathered at the front of the church to march in for the opening worship, and the pastor usually had to intercede when tempers flared as to who would carry the Bible or hold the American flag or the Christian flag. On the last day of Bible School, children who had reached the age of accountability were present for a special service conducted by the pastor. Following that a picnic lunch was prepared for the children at noon. The refreshment ladies were appreciated when they poured Kool-Aid and passed a plate of cookies. There was usually an extra special day when ice cream was involved. 
The last night of VBS, the children and teachers presented a program of music and Bible verses they had learned during the week. Many of our adults were saved at VBS held during the summer each year and have fond memories of a precious time in their lives. 
CONCLUSION 
And so this ends one phase of the history of Watertown First Baptist Church with another one waiting to be written in years to come. The church still stands on the corner of West Main Street and Central Avenue, waiting to receive souls into service for the Lord and His Kingdom. As you read of the events of the past, it is hoped that it will cause you to remember and give thanks for those who have passed through our church history and what they have meant in your life.

"Hear and There" 
Excerpts from Church Records 
Compiled by Elroy Floyd and Jean Jennings 
April 2, 1904 
Treasurer ordered to pay $1.00 to Bro. T.J. Eastes to help pay expenses to Southern Baptist Convention in Nashville. 
April 30, 1904 
The well contractor reports no water but wants $10.00 on the well and promised water soon. Request granted. 
July 2, 1904 
Bro. R.H. Patton, Chairman of Committee on Conduct reports that members are walking orderly so far as he knows. 
December 23, 1904 
Treasurer reports overdrawn at bank in the amount of 38 cents. 
December I, 1906 
Committee reports enough money to pay church out of debt. 
October 11, 1908 
U. W. Neal offered to give the church a lot to build a parsonage on valued at $150 and to sell an adjoining one for $50. 
July 4, 1915 
Committee was appointed to investigate the possibility of putting in electric I ights. 
October 4, 1915 
Committee on Lights was instructed to have hitching racks repaired. 
February 10, 1918 
Letters of Christian Fellowship were granted to the young men who have gone to serve in the war (World War I) from this church. They are Clarence Phillips, Arthur Young, James Davis, Gilford Heam, and Luke Oakford. 
October 9, 1921 
Watertown Baptist Church was admitted to Wilson County Association. 
February I 0, 1924 
Adopted resolution to change name of church to First Baptist Church. 
April 15, 1924 
Committee purchased the house and lot next door to the church for $4,000 and sold the old parsonage for $3,000. 
November 22, 1925 
Construction of the new House of Worship was completed at a cost of$27,447. 10.
December 6, 1926 
The recommendation was adopted that a 30-foot road on the east side of the church be turned over to the city so they would work it. 
November 13, 1927 
Motion made and carried to grant the Brotherhood the privilege of putting the name of the church on front of the building. 
December 4, 1927 
Committee appointed to lay off and build a sidewalk from Main Street to Woodland Street on east side of church. 
November 1, 1964 
Church authorized addition and modernizing parsonage by adding a den and laundry room.

















The Glade
The Glade Church is a contemporary, Southern Baptist, evangelical, Christian church that was established 142 years ago in 1879 in a little log building some four miles east of Gladeville. The original site is now part of Cedars of Lebanon State Forest, but under God’s leadership and direction, His work has continued to progress and been fruitful.
On March 6, 1880, the deed was made to the property where the church presently stands. The times have changed since the faithful began meeting in that little log cabin in the woods. But the desire to serve the Lord and do His will that kindled the spark, has kept the fires of faith burning brightly at The Glade Church. The church has experienced some very different seasons of ministry through the years that define it today. “To everything there is a season, and a time....He has made everything beautiful in its time.” (Eccles. 3:1, 11a)
The Glade Church was considered a “home town” type church. It was characterized by a comfortable southern hospitality and made up of 500 members with contributions of $159,000 in 1988. In the early 1990’s, the church experienced a season of “Awakening”. It was a time of discovery and fresh growth with family and new friends. It was settled and comfortable. Another way to describe the church at this time would be a “Changing Village Church” with a membership that had grown to a membership of 858 and gifts totaling $476,000. By 2004, it was in a period of gaining vision or a season of “Clarification.” The church began being classified as a “Growing Community Church.” It had a new south unsettled feel to it. By 2004, a “Vision, Mission, and Purpose” statement was established and the membership increased to 1,680 with gifts of $1,400,000.
[bookmark: _ftnref1]The church was in the season of “Simple Focus” from 2004-2010. It strategically shifted from being a “program driven” church to a “purpose driven” church. It could be identified as an “Emerging Regional Church” during this season. The membership jumped to 2,419, with gifts reaching $2,418,000.[1]
During 2010-2011 the church began to track worship attendance, and persons serving in volunteer positions in the church. This was also a season of Radical “Intensity” where the church began to focus more outwardly rather inwardly. The church had a church wide study on the book Radical by David Platt. This was definitely a period of “momentum and activity” as never seen before in the church or this area. The Glade Church is now viewed as a “Missional/Radical” church.
At the time of this writing, the church is in a season of preparing for “Expansion/Preparation” looking forward to 2020 for a season of “Multiplication.”
[bookmark: _ftnref2]This will be a period of faith-filled decisions that could lead to new paths to new places, to reach new faces and multiply.[
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Grace Baptist Church
Grace Baptist Church was established on August 8, 1988. Bob Hill was the church’s first pastor from 8/88 – 6/92. David Williams served as pastor from 7/92 – 9/99.  Alan Herd became pastor 6/4/2000 – current.
























Grace Life Baptist Church
“Proclaiming God’s Glory in Christ”
Grace Life Baptist Church began in 1951 as a Sunday School program with fourteen people enrolled (nine of which were from the sponsoring church, First Baptist Church of Lebanon, TN).  In 1953, the first, full-time pastor was called to this newly formed body of believers, and by September 1957, the Southside Baptist Church was officially organized with 234 charter members.
On Sunday, February 15, 1959, Southside dedicated its new auditorium that served as its main place of worship for the next 58 years.  Like most churches, seasons of growth and decline have been a part of our history.  Yet, on the whole, the church has experienced stability for nearly seven decades in the city of Lebanon as we have proclaimed the gospel of Jesus Christ.
Beginning as early as the late 1990s, some discussion began about relocating to a new area of town, but it was not until 2012 that formal plans were put into place.  In 2013, the congregation approved the leadership’s recommendation to sell the property and relocate.  After years of additional praying and planning, the property sold in 2017.
Around the time the property sold, the congregation approved a church name change to Grace Life Baptist Church.  Grace Life temporarily met for 2 years at “The Rock,” a building owned by the First Baptist Church of Lebanon.  In 2018, Grace Life purchased the former Dollar General Store building located at 1000 North Cumberland St.  After renovations were made, we moved into our new facility in July of 2019.
Our congregation’s mission has been and continues to be, “Proclaiming God’s Glory in Christ”.  It is our prayer and hope that as we have been set apart to worship the Lord our Creator, He will set apart the lost in our community to join us in this glorious privilege.



Soli Deo Gloria,
Jeremy T. Vanatta
Teaching Pastor




The History of Hillcrest 
Hillcrest had its beginnings in 1954 when a mission was begun through the efforts of Missionary W.B. Woodall, continuing for thirteen months with the help of Fairview Baptist Church.  Late in 1955, the work began to decline.  In January 1956, First Baptist Church prayerfully assumed the work at Upton Heights.  The first Sunday School class was held January 15th, 1956 with 20 in attendance.  Classes were held in the offices of Upton Heights, with the gracious cooperation of director James Rhea Clemmons. 
In June 1956, Hillcrest purchased the lot where it is presently located at a cost of $3200.00.  The first VBS was held in a tent on this lot beginning August 13th, 1956.  By December 1956, building plans were started and a building fund was established.  The building project began in February 1957 and was a labor of love by many men of the church.  A pulpit committee was chosen and on July 17th, 1957, the church extended the call to Pastor Charles Pringle of Texas as the first pastor of Hillcrest Baptist Chapel. 
Here was a spacious lot, a lovely church building completely furnished and air-conditioned, a congregation, membership, and hardly a prospect list.  But there was a vision, a dream, and a faith that God would, through this mission, fulfill a most obvious need in this community. That faith was amply rewarded.  Hillcrest held its first service on August 4th, 1957 with 112 in Sunday School and over $400 offering.  Two months later, the people of Hillcrest requested permission from First Baptist to assume responsibility for their own financial program.  That was granted.  In December, less than four months after its beginning, Hillcrest adopted a budget and began functioning independently.  Hillcrest had already outgrown its current facility and definite plans were made for more space.  Those plans were established with a building program costing $55,000 which was financed by the people of Hillcrest.  It included enlargement and renovating the present auditorium to seat 300, an increase from the current 150 capacity, plus an educational building to care for approximately 425. On February 22nd, 1959, a dedication service was held for the new addition.  Shortly after the addition, a purchase was approved on October 28th, 1959 for a home on Elmwood to be used as a parsonage.
On February 24th, 1963 Hillcrest Baptist Chapel was renamed Hillcrest Baptist Church.  Over the next decade, there were several remodeling projects and purchases made such as recovering the pews and buying a new organ.  In November 1980, a decision was made to build a new sanctuary auditorium.  This new auditorium was dedicated on July 5, 1981 with Pastor James Hutchings.
Through the years Hillcrest was blessed with several wonderful pastors including Charles Pringle, Jimmy Yarbrough, Hugh Collins, Marvin Suiter, James Shutt, James Hutchings, and Russ Stephens who all shared a vision for leading the lost to Calvary.  In August 1989, Bro Glenn Denton was called as Pastor of Hillcrest.  At that time, Hillcrest began to grow in number and in property size.  In July of 1994 and November 1995, lots at 619 and 709 Hartsville Pike were purchased. Plans for these new properties included enlarging parking space and church office space.  Also, the educational wing was enlarged.  On November 19th, 1995, a dedication service was held for the expansion of the educational building and office space. 
With tremendous growth taking place, Hillcrest voted to build a new worship center on August 30th, 1998.  The new auditorium with balcony space could accommodate 1200 people.  The first service was held in the new $1.5 million dollar worship center on January 21st, 2001 with the dedication service to follow on February 25th.  Soon after, the old worship center was converted into a multi-purpose building called the Ebenezer Center. Over the course of the next several years, additional acreage was purchased in 2002, 2008 and 2015 bringing our current property size to more than 25 acres.  
The next phase for Hillcrest was the vision for the new Jubilee Center.  In July 2007, approval was made to build a new multi-functional building for educational needs, social area and office space.  Additionally, remodeling the E-Center into Sunday School space was also approved.  The construction started April 2008 on the Jubilee Center and the E-Center renovations were completed shortly thereafter.
[image: ][image: ][image: ]
Throughout the years, by the Grace of God, Hillcrest has seen tremendous growth in new converts.  In 1994, Hillcrest placed 26th in the state of Tennessee for baptisms with 67 that year.  In March 2001, Hillcrest hosted Heaven’s Gates and Hell’s Flames with many decisions for Christ recorded.  That same year Hillcrest baptized 107 new converts.  In 2002, another 140 were baptized which placed Hillcrest 13th in the state.  Subsequently, God continued to bless with many new converts coming to know Him over the next few years, and even amidst the pandemic struggles of 2020, Hillcrest continues to see people saved.    
In December 2017, Pastor Glenn Denton resigned after 28 years of dedicated service.  Twenty-two months later after diligently searching and seeking God’s will, our current Pastor, Bro. Jon Ferguson, began serving in September 2019.  
Today, Hillcrest is still Reaching, Teaching, Praising, Serving and Connecting.  From the very beginning under the ministry of Pastor Pringle until now with the leadership and ministry of Pastor Jon, prayer and evangelism have always been the dominant concern for our church.  Our goal has always been and still remains to share the gospel of our wonderful Savior with this community and see many come to know Him.  And then, strive to disciple and minister to one another in order to grow closer to Him daily.  That was the mission of Hillcrest established on this hill nearly 70 years ago and will continue to be her mission until the Lord returns. 
Suggs Creek Southern Baptist Church
AKA Hobson Pike Baptist Church
3525 Hobson Pike
Hermitage, TN 37076

	On November 2, 1986 a group met at the home of J. G. De Lacey on S. Mt. Juliet Rd. to make a survey of the surrounding area. Those coming from LaGuardo Baptist Church were Rev. and Mrs. Bobby Johnson and son, Robert, Clayton, and Robbie Gray, Paul Williams, Julian Stone, and Bennett Jennings.

	Also helping in the survey was the Director of Missions of Wilson County Rev. Robert Agee, Mrs. Agee, Evelyn and Gib De Lacey.

	The first Sunday School was held in the De Lacey home on February 9, 1986 starting at 9:30. Clayton Gray gave a devotional. Bennett Jennings taught the adult class and Robbie Gray the young people. Kathy Hoffman served as pianist with Bud Simmons and Robbie Gray leading the singing.

	It was decided to start having worship service and the first one was held on Sunday, November 23, 1986. Rev. Robert Agee, Director of Missions, preached. On November 30th, Rev. Vern Powers preached his first sermon as temporary pastor.

	In January 1987, the Hamilton Hill Club House was rented. Sunday School and Worship Services were held for the first time on January 18, 1987. At the end of the service an invitation was given to join the LaGuardo Baptist Church being members of the Suggs Creek Baptist Mission. They were Ann Chapman, Kathy, David and Samantha Hoffman, Bud, Sherry, Adam, and Amanda Simmons, Jim, Debra, Justin, Adam, and Rachel Mary Lane, Gib and Evelyn De Lacey.

	Rachel Lane was the first member to be baptized at LaGuardo Baptist Church on February 15, 1987 by their pastor Rev. Bobby Johnson.

	The Lord’s Supper was first observed on February 22, 1987 with a business meeting to follow at the close of service. At this meeting, a committee was elected to look for property as a permanent home.

	Property was purchased on June 8, 1987 on Hobson Pike. A doublewide trailer was on the property and the first service was held at that site on Wednesday night, July 1, 1987.

	The first revival was held July 26-31, 1987. Speakers were Rev. Bobby Johnson, Rev. Robert Agee, Rev. Vern Powers, and Rev. Jim Yates.

	Dr. Carroll Owen became the first temporary pastor September 1, 1987.

	At a called business meeting on September 20, 1987, the name of the Mission was changed to Hobson Pike Baptist Church.

	In October of 1987, it was announced that the Baptist Sunday School Board Architecture Department was making a detailed sketch of the future building.

	Bro. James Hall Youree III was called to be the first pastor on February 29, 1988. He served from April 1988 until April 1989.

	In April 1988 approval was given to install a permanent sign at the front of our property.

	Our first Vacation Bible School was held the week of June 27, 1988.

	November 27, 2988 the church voted to build the recommended auditorium plan made by the Sunday School Board. On January 15, 1989, the church voted to hire Herb Simmons to be the contractor for the new building. The building was planned to be completed with the first service to be held on June 4, 1989.

	On April 9, 1989, Bro. Vern Powers returned as our interim pastor.

	On April 2006 the new Sunday School wing was dedicated.

	In 2006, pews were given to our church from Hermitage Hills Church of Christ. Members adjusted the pews to fit our auditorium and are still in use.

	2007 a baptistery was added behind the choir lost. Around 2014, the front flower bed was removed and replaced with a sidewalk and landscaping on each side.



























Pastors

April 1988 – April 1989		James Hall Youree III
Oct. 1989 – Dec. 1991			Dr. Carroll Owen
May 1992 – Aug. 1994		Rev. Bill Hawkins
Nov. 1994 – Feb. 2000		Rev. Charles (Chuck) Groover
					Bro. Matt Tullos
                       Dec. 2010 		Bro. Bart Gibbs
July 2011 – Sept. 2010		Rev. Ron Young
Oct. 2014				Rev. Bobby Rushing was elected as interim
Sept. 2015 – June 2019		Bro. Seth Rone
Aug. 2019 – present			Dr. Wayne Jamison
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Hurricane Baptist Church
Est. 1815

The early church records of Union (Hurricane) Church were lost by fire. It was not the church that burned but, rather the home of the church clerk, W.B. Edwards, on May 5, 1897. Those records were all-important in documenting the early history of Union (Hurricane) Church. The first known published word verifying the existence of Union Church is found in the Triennial Baptist Register, No. 2, 1836, by 

I. M. Allen. Mr. Allen writes, “Union, Wilson County, Tennessee, 10 miles south of Lebanon. Constituted August 1815, with 26 members dismissed from Smith’s Fork Church by Joshua Lester and Edward Willis. The church was supplied with preaching monthly, by Elder Joshua Lester until May 1822, when John Bond took pastoral charge of the church.
J.H. Grime records, in his History of Middle Tennessee Baptists, that brothers James and John Bond were licensed ministers of Smith’s Fork Church and became constituent members of the new church. Grimes explains that the church was established for the convenience of her members living in that section, some 12 to 15 miles distance from Smith’s Fork, and their own. Brother John Bond had deeded a track of land, eleven acres, to Union Church, and the deed mentioned a “meeting house,” verifying that a place of worship existed in that location at an earlier time. John Bond, ordained in 1820, became pastor of the new church. 

The origin of the name Hurricane is legend. The story has been repeated many times over, with little variation. It was more than 135 years ago that a great hurricane laid waste to an entire district of Wilson County, eight miles south of Lebanon. The storm at that time was called a hurricane, it probably was what is now known as a tornado. The area, isolated and uncharted, may not have had an official name at that time – prior to 1810, but the name hurricane held fast. Union Baptist Church then became known as Hurricane Church. The actual name of Union, the name it took when constituted in 1815, was so totally unknown to the general public that at two business meetings, the members took action, formally changing the name:

September 1923: At our next conference, the church will decide whether she will change the name of the church house or no.
October 1923: This being the time set apart for the church to decide whether she will change her name or not-Motion and second that the church change her name from Union to Hurricane. Motion carried.

And so it was that, following 108 years, Union Church officially became Hurricane Church. As far as can be verified, Hurricane has had three Houses of Worship. The first was a log meeting house of 1815. Second was a two-story building constructed jointly by the Baptists and Masons, and the third is the current building which was built in 1907.


Pastors of Hurricane Baptist Church 1815 – 2020
	Joshua Lester
	1815 – 1822
	Ernest Kelley
	1949 – 1950

	John Bond
	1822 – 1861
	J.R. Kennedy
	1950 – 1951

	Nathaniel Morgan Green
	1861 – 1880
	Keith Whitehead
	1951 – 1952

	Samuel Graves Shepard
	1880 – 1889
	Vance King
	1952 – 1953

	J.W. Martin
	1889 – 1893
	Ed Turns
	1954 – 1955

	J.W. Patton
	1893 – 1896
	Sam Brooks
	1955 – 1956

	C.S. Dillon
	1896 – 1899, 
1921 - 1922
	Ray Emmerson
	1956 – 1957

	S.G. Shepard
	1899 – 1901
	Robert Delozier
	1959 – 1960

	W.P.D. Clark
	1902 – 1902
	Carl Gadsey
	1961 – 1962

	C.S. Dillion
	1903 – 1909
	Charles Garrett
	1963 – 1965

	J.H. Grimes
	1910 – 1913
	W.F. Oakley
	1966 – 1971

	C.S. Dillion
	1914 – 1916
	William Hill
	1977 – 1984

	W.F. Jaggers
	1920 – 1922
	Robert Sanders
	1986 – 1987

	J.C. Stewart
	1923 – 1937
	Ronnie Smith
	1973 – 1976,
1987 – 1997,
1999 – 2001

	E.W. Agee
	1938 – 1939
	John Evans
	Interim Pastor

	J.W. Green
	1939 – 1941
	Bobby Goode
	1998 – 1999

	James Harney
	1942 – 1943
	Doug Cather
	Intern Pastor

	James H. Williams
	1944 – 1945
	Marvin Pryor
	2002

	Fred Morgan
	1946 – 1947
	James Gordon Williams
	2002 – 2010

	
	
	Kenneth M. Tramel
	2010 - present













Iglesia Bautista Renacer
Our History:
Iglesia Bautista Renacer started in 2001 as a ministry of the Wilson County Baptist Association. Pr. Alexis Andino and his wife, both from Honduras, first pastored the church. The congregation first met in The Rock at First Baptist Lebanon. In 2005, Pr. Jorge Vasconcelos and his wife, both from Brazil, took over the ministry. Chuy Avila, from the TN Baptist Convention, did the official transition. In 2006, Pr. Jorge Vasconcelos was ordained at Hilcrest Baptist Church to become the senior pastor of Iglesia Bautista Renacer and are still pastoring the congregation to this day. In 2014, Iglesia Bautista Renacer bought a property on Park Avenue, Lebanon, TN which will be the future home of the church. 

The ministry has grown throughout the years. [image: ]
Pr. Jorge, Silvania, Gabriel & Daniel Vasconcelos 
[image: ]
	  One of our first services at The Rock (FBC Lebanon) 

[image: ]
	   Fulfilling the great commission 
[image: ]
                     Pr. Jorge Vasconcelos being sworn into the ministry 

[image: ]
	      One of our services at Southside Baptist Church 

[image: ]
Our current location 


Through the Years
Immanuel Baptist Church
 
[image: ]From its inception, Immanuel Baptist Church has been a Christ-centered, Bible-preaching, mission-minded body of believers. Over the past 65 years, men and women have been dedicated and committed to “the establishment of a strong church in the heart of Lebanon, Tennessee.”
 
[image: ]On November 19, 1947, a small group of people met together, under the leadership of O.W. Lasater, a student at Cumberland, with dreams of beginning a mission church on the west side of Lebanon. Bro. Lasater was instrumental in the establishment of this early ministry. The mission met in Eaton’s Motor Court, located on the corner of West Main Street and Dawson Lane. At this first meeting, plans were made to begin a Sunday School and a future church. Bro. Charlie Tatum was appointed the first Superintendent of Sunday School which began meeting just four days later on November 23, 1947. Twenty-six people were in attendance for the first Sunday School. On a Sunday afternoon in December, it was voted to call this new ministry the West End Baptist Mission. 
 
In May of 1948, twenty-one people gathered at a small lot on the corner of Castle Heights Avenue and Meadow Lane to make decisions concerning this property for a future church. From
June 7-18 of that year, a Vacation Bible School and Revival were held in a tent on this lot with fifty enrolled in the first Bible School. Seven were saved during the Revival as well. 
 
[image: ]At a prayer meeting, on Thursday night, July 15, 1948, in the home of Mr. and Mrs. Tolbert Apple, the Barton’s Creek Baptist Church voted to sponsor the mission. Soon afterwards, on September 30, 1948, a larger lot (112 feet x 280 feet) was purchased ‘just down the road’ at the corner of Castle Heights Avenue and Wildwood Avenue. In October, 1948 the associational tent was used for the purpose of conducting a Revival meeting, but this time it was on the new, larger property. Mr. and Mrs. Tolbert Apple then purchased an adjoining lot in March, 1949, and gave it to the mission.  A total of twenty-three people met on this property on May 7, 1949 for groundbreaking of their first building. Once again the associational tent was secured to hold a Revival meeting and Vacation Bible School. Sixty-one enrolled in Bible School and nine professions of faith were made during Revival services. 
 
The foundation for the new church building, located at Castle Heights and Wildwood, was poured on July 8, 1949. The original front door to the building faced Wildwood Avenue. Although the building was not quite finished, on September 22, 1949, the West End Baptist Mission met for the first time in their new building to worship and praise God for all He had done. In November, 1949, Bro. Raymond A. Coppenger, a faculty member at Cumberland, was called as pastor of the mission on a part-time basis. Then on Sunday, January 1, 1950, all regular services began meeting in the new church building. 
 
[image: ]
By the spring of 1950, the mission was ready to be organized into a church, and voted to change their name to Immanuel Baptist Church. The period of May 14 – May 28, 1950 were the dates designated to receive members who would sign the resolution and constitution of the Church, thus becoming charter members of Immanuel.

[image: ]Bro. Leonard Arbuckle was called in the spring of 1951 to be the first full-time pastor of Immanuel. During his leadership the church grew from a congregation of 125 to a membership of 580. This made it necessary to build and make more room for worship. In 1955 an auditorium, with a center-section balcony and basement, was built for a full seating capacity of 550 people. Remodeling of the ‘first’ phase, built in 1949, added much-needed classrooms for the growing congregation. This would be just the beginning of many construction projects and buildings that would need to be added for ‘the church on the hill’ that God was blessing in a rich and mighty way. Ernest Johnson, a member at Immanuel, led the music for worship services in the mid–to late fifties. Bro. Arbuckle served at Immanuel until April, 1959. 
[image: ]  
In August, 1959, the church issued a call to Bro. Chester R. Parker to serve as its second full-time pastor. Immanuel continued to grow in number, and additional staff was added when Fred VanHook was called to Immanuel to serve as minister of music. He served on a part-time basis from 1961 – 1974. The church was well on its way to becoming the strong church envisioned by its original members. Bro. Parker served as pastor until the end of 1962.
[image: ] 
Bro. Donald Owens, was called as the third full-time pastor of Immanuel in March, 1963, to take the helm of the fast-growing church. Young families with children were attracted to the church. A weekday kindergarten program was started in the fall of 1963. With the additional growth came new challenges. In 1967, seating to accommodate 860 people was made possible by adding the two outer ‘wings’ on the ground-level of the auditorium. Again, Immanuel rose to the challenge and provided ministries that were family-oriented and driven by the passion of seeing the community reached for Christ. 
 
By 1969 the church was pushing the 1000-member mark and needed additional education space to house the ever-growing congregation. Architects were employed to draw plans for the Educational Building, which was completed in 1970. With continued growth, especially families with small children, the church decided to sponsor a daycare ministry, and a bus ministry. As the members continued to reach out to the community, growth was the natural product.
[image: ] 
In May, 1975, ground was broken again for yet another building. This time, it was the Activities Building. It would give room for church fellowship suppers, fall festivals, receptions, church-sponsored youth and adult basketball leagues, Sunday School class fellowships, and just a great place for families to come and play together.
 
 Additional office space was added in 1978 to the west side of the main building and provided more room for an ever-increasing staff. Bro. Dave Shelley was called to Immanuel to serve as its first full-time bus director and children’s minister in 1979. Through the years we have been blessed to have had many staff ministry positions filled by men and women who were dedicated and passionate about serving their Lord through the Immanuel Baptist Church.
 
In 1987 the need for additional classroom space was addressed and a new adult educational building was constructed. In 2000 this space became known as The Owens Building.
 
As time marched on the membership of Immanuel was at 1500 people, and plans were again under way to expand the auditorium to its present size. By adding two balconies and enlarging the choir loft, the full seating capacity rose to 1400 people. This project was completed in 1990.
[image: ] 
Later in the nineties, Bro. W. L. Baker, a dear friend and mentor, was called through the ministry of Bro. Owens to serve in the capacity of senior associate pastor at Immanuel. In 2008, Pastor John Hunn named Bro. Baker, at the age of 100, Pastor Emeritus of Immanuel. 

[image: ]There was continual growth with the addition of these buildings, and soon they were filled to capacity. Under Bro. Owens’ leadership, the original dream – “to have a strong church on the west side of Lebanon” – had become a reality. Lebanon was a growing community, and what was once the west side was now the center of Lebanon. Bro. Don, as he was affectionately known, faithfully served Immanuel for over 37 years.

The church faced a time of transition after Bro. Owens’ retirement in December, 2000. Associate Pastor W.D. Thomason and Dick Gillespie, Minister of Education, as well as various interim pastors, gave excellent leadership as the church repositioned for its next phase of growth and ministry.
 
In April, 2002, the church called Bro. Kenn Hucks, as its fourth full-time pastor, to carry on the dream that had begun some 55 years earlier. Under his leadership the church experienced a new surge of growth. No new buildings were added, however, the church offices were moved upstairs to the current site, offering first floor space for adult classrooms and a prayer room. His leadership offered the church an opportunity to refocus on its mission, to use its resources to upgrade the facilities, and to expand its ministries. Bro. Kenn served as pastor until the spring of 2007. 


Bro. John Hunn was called to serve as senior pastor at Immanuel in 2008. Pastor John was no stranger to Immanuel since he was converted to Christ while a student at Cumberland. He joined Immanuel in 1985, then [image: ]was later ordained to preach the gospel. His spiritual journey took him to seminary in Texas, then on to serve as pastor at churches in Montana and Alaska. His servant heart has blessed many people in Wilson County, across this country, and around the world.  Many renovation projects were completed during his 11 year tenure at Immanuel.  One major addition was the Senior Adult Parking lot and entrance on the south side of the building which was completed in the fall of 2016.  In April, 2017 Bro. John led the church in the purchase of a house and 26 acres of land on Leeville Pike.  Immanuel’s congregation gave generously to these two major projects, enabling the church to remain debt free.   Bro. John resigned in November 2018 to work full time in missions with Church Missions Network.
[image: ] 
[image: ]The church was then faced with another time of transition.   Under the leadership of Associate Pastor Jeff Pratt, the church began three morning worship services in the Sanctuary in September 2020.  Then, in October, 2020 two Sunday School hours were offered during the morning Sunday School hours.   The church called Jeff Pratt as the sixth full-time Senior Pastor in November 2020.  

The history of Immanuel is ‘still a work in progress.’ Through the first 73 years our church has experienced countless victories and God has brought us to the place of the original dream, “a strong church in the heart of Lebanon.” Immanuel Baptist Church remains a Christ-centered, Bible-preaching, mission-minded body of believers.

Through prayer and continued faith in God we can trust that our best days are yet to come as we allow Him to work through us and spread His message of salvation and love.
 

 
LaGuardo Baptist Church

	LaGuardo Baptist Church has been around for quite a while.  Historical records elude to the fact its earliest existence probably began sometime in the late 1790s, around 230 years ago.  LaGuardo Baptist Church is currently located on 20 acres in the bedroom community of LaGuardo, approximately 30 miles East of Nashville.   Nestled on a rolling hillside at 8585 Highway 109 North in Lebanon, Tennessee, we are about half-way between I-40 and Gallatin, Tennessee, and within one-half mile north of what is believed to be the original site of the church.  The community name “LaGuardo” is assumed to have originated from one of the early settlers but is not confirmed as of this writing. 

	Most noteworthy and gleaned from this journey back in time . . . it is apparent the founding members (and the generations who followed), were comprised of men and women of devout faith, who endured many hardships in life and appreciated the simple things in life.  The church had struggles, but they stood in their faith, recognized their blessings, rejoiced, and moved on.  They were committed to worshiping and serving our one true and living God by supporting the local church and focusing on the spiritual welfare of residents in the surrounding communities, a virtue that has evolved down through generations and fostering its survival.

	Early Beginnings:  In your mind’s eye, let’s travel back to the late 1790’s to early 1800’s, where, in its earliest beginnings, history eludes to the fact that LaGuardo Baptist Church was originally known as Spencer’s Lick of the Concord Baptist Association.  Our oldest official records begin June 2, 1855. Since then there have been four name changes: “United Baptist Church of Christ of Spencer’s Lick” in 1855; “Missionary Baptist Church at Spencer’s Lick” in 1868, “LaGuardo Missionary Baptist Church” in 1871; and lastly, “LaGuardo Baptist Church” in 1879. Today, LaGuardo Baptist Church is a member of the Wilson County Baptist Association.  

	Locations:  Just where was Spencer’s Lick located in the early 1790’s-1800’s?  Obviously, those who truly knew first-hand are long gone, but historical records point to early settlers erecting a “Baptist Church” a few yards away from our previous location near 8145 Hwy 109.  If one knew the location of the original property granted to Stokley Donelson or John Robertson by early settlers, the exact location would probably be apparent.  

	Then, unfortunately, on a cold winter Monday morning (January 1, 1951 to be exact), fire destroyed that frame building.  As was the custom of the day, and under the leadership of a young pastor by the name of William T. Malone, on April 27, 1952 church members and the community banded together in a labor of love and rebuilt a new building on the existing property.  Worthy of noting, a son of that young pastor, Troy Malone, is a current, active member of LaGuardo Baptist Church.

	Over the next several years, the church had its ups and downs but grew and many renovations took place.  In 1994 a Long-Term Expansion Plan was adopted and eventually a “Forward in Faith” Pledge Program was established, enabling the church to later purchase 20 acres of land from the Bennett Jennings family, approximately one-half mile north of the current site of 8145 Highway 109.  Brother Bennett was a deacon in the church for many years and a well-respected pillar of the community.  He passed away unexpectedly in 1992 at the approximate age of 71.  Sadly, this family endured another loss on October 25, 2016.   Brother Bennet’s son, Ken Jennings, who, like his father, was a devout Christian man of God who walked the talk and always put others first, was lost to cancer at the young age of 51.  A ball field was built on the current property and dedicated in his memory.  The support of this family and many other families helped facilitate the move to our current location.  A new building was erected on the 8585 Hwy 109 property in 2014 to accommodate current and future growth.   Worship services are typically held on Sunday mornings, evenings, and Wednesday evenings under the leadership of our current pastor, Dr. James Stophel.  However, for the safety of the flock, 	when Covid-19 hit, we exercised modified services as the situation dictated.  We currently practice social distancing and the optional choice of wearing masks. 

	Membership:  Now over a period of 200+ years, one wonders just who and how many attended LaGuardo Baptist church.  Membership fluctuation was as common then as it is now.  Early records (Sept 28, 1828) indicate Spencer’s Lick (as LBC was known at the time) had 27 members.  Total membership reported through the Concord Association grew to 31 in Sept 1830.  By 1834 the membership had grown to 61. Like today, many factors impacted membership, e.g., hard times, weather, theological conflicts, splits, sickness, etc.  History mentions a Pleasant Grove Church (which later dissolved) as being started by some members from Spencer’s Lick.  Additionally, early records indicate the Concord Associations split into two Associations; Concord Associations #2 and the Concord Association of United Baptists.  Appears the black community worshiped together with the white community until February 1, 1867 when they requested their letters. The assumption is the black Baptist Church was established at this time.  It was not uncommon for one pastor to travel between communities to pastor multiple churches.  In the 1840’s there were three different bodies of Baptists; Separate Baptists in Christ, Primitive Baptists, and the United Baptists.  These three groups had grown out of the original Baptist group “General Baptists” which left England in 1612 due to persecution.  The Southern Baptist Convention emerged from these groups in 1845.  By 1891, LaGuardo’s membership had grown to 107.  Between the 1950’s and 1990’s, membership fluctuated between 80 and 175.  During this period several missions were spearheaded by LaGuardo Baptist Church; Webb’s Chapel (1982), Mission at Martha (1983), Suggs Creek Mission (1986), Sunday School Outreach at Cherokee (1987).  Here we are, 2020, our current membership is approximately 175 with an average attendance of 70-80.  
	Pastors:  Over the course of 230 years, LaGuardo Baptist has called approximately 35 pastors.  The first pastor was Elisha Vaughan as noted in the Sept 28, 1828 Concord Baptist Association files.  Our older generations will remember:  A. D. Roberson, William T. Malone, Ernest Jones, William Donnel, John Lowrance, Grady Craddock, Lewis White, Steve Bingham, Bobby Johnson, Carl Price; while our younger generations will remember Mark Thompson, Kevin Butler, James Stophel.
	Prominent Names:  In the late 1790’s-1800’s the Vaughans were members and leaders for 75 to 100 years. Other prominent names were Askew, Bates, Darden, Davis, Eagan, Green, Riggan, Rushing, Stewart, Washburn, Whitson, Williams, Wright, Williams and York.  

	LaGuardo Baptist Church, like many other churches, has both struggled and thrived. But, by His grace, we are still running the race.  Our lives have evolved from no lighting in our building, to candles, coal oil lamps, and then electricity; from no heat, to wood stoves, coal stoves, gas, electricity, and central air.  We’ve endured diseases such as Smallpox, Polio, Covid-19, the Civil War, World Wars I & II, the Korean and Vietnam conflict, Mid-East Conflicts, and of course, the Great Depression.  And, who knows what tomorrow may bring as our country continues to face challenging times.  In the meantime, we are committed to continue our calling of serving Him and spreading the Gospel of Jesus Christ our Lord. No, we don’t know about tomorrow, but we do know who holds our hand. Amen.





















History of Macedonia Baptist Church.
History of Hogans Creek Missionary Baptist Church 
In the very early part of the nineteenth century, when this part of the world was still 
being settled, Elder Daniel Burford, a minister of Dixon's Creek Church, began preaching near where the Caney Fork River empties into the Cumberland. The Lord blessed this work, people were saved, joined the body, and Hogan's Creek began to grow. 
In June 1806, the Church at Dixon's Creek extended an arm and Hogan's Creek 
continued under the supervision of the mother Church at Dixon's Creek. Elder Burford was chosen as our pastor. In the fall of that year "seats" were constructed in the town of Carthage and the body met regularly there until 1808 when they moved to a new meeting house on the south side of the river, near the mouth of the Caney Fork. We worshiped there as an arm of Dixon's Creek until June 30, 1810 when they were constituted into an independent church. There were 48 members at that time and the church was known by the name of Caney Fork. 
The Church continued to worship here with Elder William Flowers as pastor until 1818. They then moved approximately two miles south of Carthage to the banks of Hogan's Creek. A new house of worship was constructed and the name was changed to Hogan's Creek. The first service was held in the new building in December 1819. In 1860, just before the Civil War, the church constructed a new house of worship. Although changed and remodeled several times over the years, this is the building we now worship in. Three Churches have been sent out from Hogan's Creek: Peyton's Creek in July, 1812; Plunkett's Creek in August, 1837; and, Macedonia in April, 1839. 

Macedonia Baptist Church 

Originally written by Francis Barrett Winfree, revised by Catherine Scudder and continually updated. 

In the year of our Lord 1830, there were a few neighbors who opened their doors for the purpose of having religious services on Dyers Branch, two miles north of New Middleton. 

see http://www.hoganscreekmbc.com/home.htm 

Elder John Harper gathered an arm of Hogan's Creek Baptist Church at this place which he supplied with preaching until it was constituted into an independent church known as Macedonia Baptist Church on April 13, 1839. this church was constituted with 23 members from Hogans' Creek Church by Elders William Flowers, John Borum, Archamac Bass, Joseph Payne, John Harper and Abel Gregory.

In 1838, a log building was erected at a cost of approximately $1,900 on Dyers Branch. 
The church sent out a colony in 1850 to constitute Buena Vista Church, which is now Grant Missionary Church. She was represented in the Salem Association until 1888 when she went into the constitution of New Salem Association. 
This body continued to worship there (on dyers branch) with a good degree of prosperity until 1864 when the building burned. (civil war) ??? 
After the building burned, Elder James Barrett, Sr., led his congregation to worship in his store in New Middleton for 2 years. In 1866, a new building was erected at a cost of $2,900. (on hill above current building --- 1938 structure) Mulherrin Rd. The deed to this property is recorded in deed book# 1, page# 737, registers office smith county, Tn. recorded in 1872. (according to the deed the church building was already built (1866). ken house) 
The 1866 building was replaced with a building constructed in 1938. The new building cost $5500. (The old building was torn down and salvaged; according to James Bass). 
In March 1935, under the pastorate of the rev. W. B. Woodall, a building fund was started for the erection of a new building. In May of 1938, Mr. N. B. House reported to the courier (county paper) that a nice cash sum was on hand, but the committee hoped to collect more to complete the new building as designed. 
The new church was built on what members call "God's acreage Plan." Individual members planted an acre in some product such as corn, tobacco, potatoes and gave to the building fund, the net proceeds of the crop. The women helped by contributing all the eggs that their hens laid on each Sunday. 
On July 21, 1938, ground was broken for the new brick building, that was soon to grace, the hallowed spot. 
The building was brick veneer with a stone foundation and was as complete as a church building of its size could possibly be. The large auditorium, including balcony, had a capacity of about 400. Six Sunday school rooms and 2 rest rooms were located in the basement. A water well that never ran dry furnished water for the building and a modern hot air coal fired furnace provided heat. The new building had running water, rest rooms, electricity, etc .. 
On Sunday April 30, 1939, some four or five hundred people were welcomed by the pastor, as they gathered for the dedication services for the new church. 
One of the greatest revivals in the history of the church was in 1908 during the pastorate of Rev. G. A. Ogle, assisted by Evangelist George W. Swope, when there were 100 conversions and 75 additions to the church.
The first Women's Missionary Society (WMS) of New Middleton was organized June 18, 1911. This society met regularly for one year. Then on November 6, 1930, Mrs. Ona Thomas, Superintendent of New Salem Association met with 11 ladies at the home of Mrs. A. T. Morris and reorganized the WMS. Royal Service was subscribed to by the members at the first meeting. All of the WMU auxiliaries were organized. 
In October 1931, the church put on an "Every Member Canvas." This system of finance through the Co-operative Program increased contributions for missions and local expenses. The Co-operative Program continues to be the lifeline to missions. 
The church went from quarter-time preaching to half-time preaching in 1941. Ten years later it went to a full-time church with an indefinite call to its pastor rather than a yearly call. 
In 1951, the church decided to extend an arm to the people of Gordonsville and began a church there. The Gordonsville mission became an independent church April 12, 1956. Presently, Gordonsville First Baptist Church is a thriving congregation with various ministries. 
In the fall of 1951, the church voted to build a pastorium and the following building Committee was appointed: Dave Litchford, Esker Winfree and Ralph Holbrook. The site on which the pastorium would be built was donated by Ralph and Ruth Holbrook. 
In the spring revival of 1951, seventeen people were saved. Of these, fifteen united with the church, twelve by baptism and 3 by letter. The pastor at this revival was Bro. Tommy Hight and the evangelist was Bro. James Westmoreland. 
The January through March quarter of 1952 recorded an average attendance in Sunday School of 143.5 and a Training Union average attendance of 72. In December 1952, the church sent gifts to the Armed Forces (Korean War). 
In February 1954, the church voted to organize a Brotherhood and elected officers and the church voted this year to broadcast the revival services over the radio. 
In October 1956, the church voted to build sunday school rooms on the west side of the church and appointed a building committee. (never built) 
In March 1957, Bro. Albert Jewell joined hands with Pastor G. A. Craddock to conduct our spring revival. There were fourteen professions of faith. During this time, Mrs. Craddock led a very active G. A. group. 
In July 1964, the church voted to build a cabin at Camp Nor-Da-Tho, New Salem's retreat camp named in memory of Norris Davis Thomas, an active young Baptist man from Hickman Baptist Church. 
During the year of 1967, the church received $16,600 from the State of Tennessee for
damages to the property because of the construction of Interstate 40. The church voted in regular business session on October 4, 1967, to relocate and construct a new building. The following month, the church accepted Ralph and Ruth Holbrook's offer of a building site for the church that joins the east boundary of the pastorium plot. On December 11, 1968, the church approved the plan recommended by the Building Committee for this new house of worship and the first service was held in new 
building on October 12, 1969. approximately one month later, on November 16, 1969, this beautiful building was dedicated to the Lord, costing approximately $39,000. 
During this time a group decided that they would not move and stayed in the old building. They ultimately named the new congregation Macedonia Baptist Church. 
(taking the original name) the church was organized March 15, 1970. Kenneth House





Pastors
	1839-1846
	John Harper

	1846-1851
	Louis Dies

	1851-1852
	R. Lyon

	1852-1853
	James Barrett

	1853-1854
	R. Lyon

	1854-1872
	James Barrett

	1872-1875
	A.J. McNabb

	1875-1876
	Louis Dies

	1876-1884
	T. J. Eastes

	1884-1888
	J. R. Hearn

	1888-1890
	T. J. Eastes

	1890-1891
	W. H. Smith

	1891-1892
	J. W. Bailey

	1892-1894
	John Washburn

	1894-1901
	M. W. Russell

	1901-1904
	J. T. Oakley

	1904-1907
	W. J. Watson

	1907-1908
	G. A. Olge

	1909-1910
	L. S. Eaton

	1910-1914
	L. A. Hurst

	1914-1915
	A.P. Moore

	1915-1916
	J. P. Bilyew

	1916-1917
	H. F. Burns

	1917-1922
	C.C. Ramsey

	1922-1925
	H. C. Adkins

	1925-1930
	J.T. Oakley

	1930-1938
	W.B. Woodall

	1938-1941
	W.H. Clapp

	1941-1950
	J.H. Ramsey

	1950-1953
	Tommy Hight

	1953-1957
	Grady Craddock

	1957-1959
	Thomas Lawhon

	1959-1963
	J.H. Smothers

	1963-1966
	W.J. Suddarth

	1966-1968
	Robert Fesler

	1968-1972
	Emery Farmer







List of Deacons
	Stephen Farmer
	1847
	K.C. Terry
	1932

	LeRoy James
	1847
	Frank Agee
	1932

	Edmon James
	1849
	A.T. Morris
	1932

	J.T. Farmer
	1850
	Clarence House
	1932

	W.S. Neal
	1868
	W. Campbell Baker, Jr.
	1932

	James A. Barrett
	1869
	Bobby Wilkerson
	1932

	W.V. Harrell
	1876
	Willis Barrett
	1932

	J.O. Stallings
	1878
	Letcher Armistead
	1932

	John Webb
	1878
	James Herlin Nixon
	1932

	William C. Baker
	1878
	Dave Litchford
	1951

	J.H. Baird
	1896
	Odell Winfree
	1951

	James Barrett, Jr.
	1896
	Ben Oakley
	1965

	W.F. Barrett
	1896
	Jerry Baker
	1965

	P.W. House
	1896
	Marvin Parker
	1972

	J.H. Parker
	1897
	Wayne Long
	1993



Men Ordained to the Gospel Ministry
	May 8, 1941
	Elijah Bomer

	May 1850
	James Barrett

	January 1858
	M.T. Ragan

	May 1871
	Edward Patton

	June 1876
	J.T. Farmer

	January 1888
	R.N. Barrett

	October 1956
	Wayland Holbrook

	February 25, 1979
	Jim Buchanan



Song Leaders
	W.L. Turner
	1939-1940
	Ronnie Winfree
	1963--1964

	Glen Winfree
	1941-1951
	Glen Winfree
	1964-1965

	Cordell Winfree
	1952-1953
	Ronnie Winfree
	1965-1966

	Kenneth Cheek
	1953-1954
	James Baker
	1966-1967

	James Paris
	1954-1955
	James Paris
	1967-1968

	Glen Winfree
	1956-1958
	Campbell Baker
	1969-1974

	James Paris
	1959-1960
	Robert Hunt
	1974-1974

	Glen Winfree
	1961-1962
	
	






Clerks
	Thomas Snoddy
	1839-1852
	J.G. Minton
	1907-1955

	J.H. Ligon
	1852-1884
	C.M. Gill
	1955-1963

	J.A. Barrett
	1884-1890
	Esker Winfree
	1963-1964

	N.B. House
	1890-1901
	Thelma Wright
	1964-1980

	Kirgus Baker
	1901-1907
	Margaret Lancaster
	1980-



Sunday School Superintendents/Directors
	J.H. Parker
	1896-1902

	John Bradley
	1902-1903

	J.H. Parker
	1903-1909

	J.G. Minton
	1909-1933

	George Allen
	1933-1935

	Elmer Winfree
	1935-1948

	J.H. Nixon
	1948-1952

	Elmer Winfree
	1952-1953

	Esker Winfree
	1953-1964

	Clyde Winfree
	1964-1965

	Jerry Baker
	1965-1969

	James Baker
	1969-1974
















Mt. Olivet Baptist Church History
On June 1, 1796, Tennessee became the 16th state in the United States with approximately 77,000 people living in the state.  Three years later, in 1799, the first Camp Meeting in Tennessee was held at Cane Ridge, in Sumner County.  This meeting was attended by most of the religious leaders in the Nashville Basin.  The emphasis for the meeting was to “establish churches in each settlement to preach the gospel and hold fellowship with each other to keep the rules of the gospel”.  
The war was over and the new democracy, the United States of America, was growing.  Thomas Jefferson had just entered the White House as our third president in 1801 when Big Cedar Lick Church, later to be known at Mt. Olivet Baptist Church, was constituted on April 25, 1801, becoming the first Baptist church in Wilson County.  The church took its name from the creek nearby, Big Cedar Lick, and was located about 1.5 miles east of the present church building.  After a time of prayer and fasting by the church, Brother Moore Stevenson was called as the first pastor in April, 1802 and he served as pastor until he died of diphtheria in 1818.
The early church was active in spreading the gospel by establishing “arms” of the church.  “Arms” are similar to missions today.  Due to difficult and slow travel conditions in the early 19th century, it was common to form local churches in a community as close to where they lived as soon as there were enough people to support a local church.  The people were still members of the mother church until they were constituted into a church.  Big Cedar Lick generated at least 11 arms.
Big Cedar Lick changed its name to Mt. Olivet in 1843.  This same year, property was provided for a new church building, where the church currently stands today.  Construction of the rock sanctuary, still used today, began in 1859.  Slave labor was used to hew out and erect the large stones.  A “lizard” was used to move the large stones and a “Gin Pole” used as a crane like device to lift the large stones into place.  As the Civil War began in 1861, construction was halted.  Services at the church were called off.  The partially completed structure was used to treat wounded soldiers from the battles fought nearby.  In 1864, even though the war raged on, returning soldiers and those remaining at home decided they needed to worship God and fellowship with each other.  Services resumed in 1864 and the church building was completed after the war.
On April 25th, 1901, Mt. Olivet was 100 years old.  A Centennial Celebration was planned and an estimated 1000 people attended.  A woven wire fence table was created, stretching the length of a football field and held “one of the finest and best arranged dinners ever served in Wilson County”.  
Missions have always been an important part of the church.  In 1916, the church voted to donate a $50 cow to the Orphan’s Home (Baptist Children’s Home).  Using a horse and buggy, two church members drove the cow from Leeville to the Home near Franklin.  They took turns riding in the buggy and driving the cow.  Funds to help purchase the cow to donate were raised by the WMU.
Modern conveniences began to be part of church activities.  In 1913 the telephone was used to call a pastor to ask him to come preach on Sunday.  Carbide lights hanging from the ceiling replaced the kerosene lamps.
In 1919, the church agreed to support the Southern Baptist Convention’s 75 Million Campaign, a 5 year plan to raise $75 million dollars for its mission efforts.  The church pledged to give $3047.
Mt. Olivet has been a member of 5 different associations.  It joined the Wilson County Baptist Association at its inception in 1921.
A tornado blew off a portion of the roof in May, 1949.  During the time of repair, the church met at the Leeville School building.  
A Sunday School wing was added to the church in 1952.  The two-story addition added 8 Sunday School class rooms. An additional building was added to the back of the building in 1972, adding Sunday School rooms, a Fellowship Hall, a kitchen and the first indoor restroom.  A steeple was added to the church in 1979.  The first telephone was installed in 1983.
A west wing was added to the church in 1987 adding Sunday School classrooms and restrooms.  
During the 1990’s, several teams from the church went out into the world to spread the gospel.  In 1991 and 1993, groups of men traveled to Chile, sharing the gospel and working with Baptist missionaries stationed there. In 1993 and 1997, groups traveled to Benin, West Africa, working with local missionaries, conducting VBS for the missionary kids and assisting with VBS in the local churches.  In 1998, a group traveled to Brazil to help refurbish a Baptist school for needy children.
Mt. Olivet celebrated its 200th anniversary on April 22,2001.  More than 350 attended the events of day, which included services, lunch, group pictures and the burial of a time capsule to be opened on the celebration of the churches 300th anniversary in 2101.
Stained glass windows were placed in the Sanctuary in 2002.
A new addition was added to the east side of the church in 2007.  The addition included a new kitchen, Family Life Center, Church offices, two restrooms and classrooms.  A new entry foyer has become a gathering spot for coffee and fellowship each Sunday Morning.  The first wing added to the church in 1952 was demolished for the new addition.
The year 2020 brought a new challenge to the church.  A world-wide pandemic caused the US President and the Governor of Tennessee to issue Stay at Home orders that prohibited gatherings of 10 or more people.  In person church services across the country were cancelled.  Technology allowed services to be streamed over the internet and viewed by members from the safety of their homes.  Mt. Olivet was blessed with members able to use such technology and keep its members engaged and connected with the church.  Easter Sunday brought another first with a Drive-In Service.  Members drove their cars to church, parking with their cars facing the front porch of the church where the pastor and praise team lead the church in music and worship, while members listened to the service in the safety of their cars via an FM radio station.   
The church was able to use the time when the building was empty to complete a planned remodeling of the sanctuary.  New seating and flooring were added.  Several members who were unable to work during the pandemic were able to complete additional projects, saving the church time and money, a blessing during challenging times.
A review of this history gives strong evidence that God has been in the midst of and at work in this local church for over 200 years.  This living history offers us hope and encouragement for the future. 
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Mt. Olivet Baptist 1860’s
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Mt. Olivet Baptist 2020




Mt. Olivet Baptist Church Pastor’s

	Moore Stevenson
	1802-1818
	G.A. Ogle
	1908-1909

	John Dew & Edward Willis
	1818-1823
	James B. Davenport
	1910-1911

	John Jones
	1823-1830
	S.N. Fitzpatrick
	1911-1912

	William White & John Jones
	1832
	James Sanders
	1913

	John Jones
	1833-1834
	T.J. Ratcliff
	1914-1919

	John Cummins
	1834-1835
	…. McGill
	1920-1921

	Elijah W. Haile
	1841-1844
	C.B. Baker & C.E. Ramsey
	1921-1922

	John Selvage
	1845-1846
	J.T. Oakley
	1922-1926

	R.R. Barton
	1848-1851
	J.C. Stewart
	1926-1928

	William F. Luck
	1852-1857
	T.J. Ratcliff
	1928-1931

	A.J. Brandon
	1858-1862
	E.L. Burnet
	1931-1939

	A.J. Brandon
	1864-1867
	S.F. Simms (Interim)
	1939-1940

	J.P. Weaver
	1868
	W. Paul Hall
	1940-1944

	Morgan Green & Louis Lindsay
	1869
	Albert G. Jewell
	1944-1948

	Louis Lindsay
	1869-1870
	S.G. Womack
	1948-1949

	William Kone
	1871
	Jack Altman
	1949-1950

	J.P. Weaver
	1872
	Johnnie E. Lee
	1950-1952

	G.W. Shepard
	1873-1876
	Peter H. Dier
	1952-1954

	J.T. Oakley
	1877-1881
	Charles Lemay
	1954-1956

	J.S. Rice
	1881-1882
	Thurman White
	1957-1958

	J.H. Anderson
	1883-1885
	Oscar L. Nash
	1958-1960

	J.T. Oakley
	1885-1887
	Ernest E. Blair
	1960-1961

	J.P. Gilliam
	1887-1892
	Alton C. Garrard
	1961-1965

	J.H. Grime
	1893-1894
	Oran Collins
	1965-1966

	J.T. Oakley
	1894-1895
	Eltis N. Brown
	1967-1990

	S.G. Shepard
	1896-1899
	Jim McAfee
	1991-2000

	S.N. Fitzpatrick
	1900-1901
	Mike Pearson (Interim)
	2000

	J.J. Carr
	1901-1906
	Gary McCaleb
	2001-2012

	H.M. Eastes
	1907-1908
	Rodney Duckett
	2013-present










New Vision Baptist Church

New Vision Baptist Church was established in 1997. Russell Vickers was asked to fill in and started on December 21, 2008 and accepted the call as pastor on February 22, 2009 and is still the pastor today.
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HISTORY OF RAMAH BAPTIST CHURCH
1785 Rocky Branch Road
Watertown, TN

	Ramah Baptist Church was organized November 22, 1879. The church had 15 members. The first deacons were: W. C. Patterson, Purnel Lane and J. B. Tarpley. The first Pastor of Ramah Church was S. J. Alsup. Bro Alsup’s salary was $60.00 per year.

	In August of 1880, the name Ramah was selected by the Bro. Alsup and the church voted to accept this name.

	In 1880 Ramah held its first Revival. The church had 17 members by the end of the year 1880. The building was completed and dedicated on the 4th Sunday of August, 1880.

	By the end of the year 1881, Ramah had a total membership of 62 members. During the years from 1881-1886 were good years for Ramah with 71 new members. By the end of 1889, Ramah had a total of 159 members.

	In 1891, the Association met with Ramah Church. In 1911, the Association met again with Ramah and in 1929, the Association met with Ramah for the 3rd time. The church was moved in the year of 1929 to its present location. The original location was a few feet farther down, closer to the creek.

	Several Pastors have served at Ramah since its inception. They are as follows: S. J. Alsup (1879-1890, 1892-1895), G. A. Ogle (1890), John T. Oakley (1891), J. H. Grimes (1895-1901, 1913-1923), C. J. Dillon (1901), John Leem on (1903), F. J. Fuqua (1908), J. L. Mason (1912), W. F. Jaggers (1923), V. L. Wright (1933), G. W. Ramsey (1935), Fred Morgan (1937), H. R. Anderson (1945), William Donnell (1947). Henry Stchinson (1950), Robert DePriest (1951), Tom Erwin (1952), Robert Daughty (1954), William Fox (1955), Paul Dinkins (1956), Thomas Smith (1959), Enzo Mathis (1963), Lossie Hall (1967), Earl Moore (1968), Billy Curtis (1969), Doyle Wilkerson (1972), Cecil Vantrease (1976, 1980-1982), Johnny Pruitt (1977), Euel Sanders (1978), Jimmy Atnip(1982- 2018). After 35 years of dedicated service, Bro. Jimmy Atnip left Ramah to spend eternity with our Lord and Savior. Bro. Glenn Denton served as Interim Pastor during 2018-2019. In 2019, Bro. Brandon Patton was called to serve as Pastor. His love and enthusiasm for serving and sharing the Word is contagious. There have been 12 additions to Ramah membership in the past year.

	Ramah has seen growth and structural changes during the years. Some of the changes include wiring for electricity, Sunday School rooms added, steps in front of the church were added, siding and new windows completed and the addition of a Fellowship Hall. Central heat and air as well as bathrooms were also added.

Ramah is an active church today reaching out to minister to all. Our setting is very serene and peaceful surrounded by the natural beauty of God’s glorious nature. Ramah celebrated 141 years of service for the community in August, 2020










Ramah - 1947, Bro. William Donnell, Pastor
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Ramah - 2020, Bro. Brandon Patton, Pastor
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ROCKY VALLEY BAPTIST CHURCH
The ﬁrst meeting of the Rocky Valley congregation, though it did not then constitute a church, was held on “Saturday before the second Lord’s Day” in April 1952.  The record shows that it was the “arm of the Union (Hurricane) church” that met at Virett’s schoolhouse which when school was not in session was a sheep shearing pen. 
Three weeks earlier three Baptist men from the Pulltight to Pinhook community mounted their horses and took a petition to the Hurricane church to grant authority in this neighborhood to form themselves into “an arm” to do church business with the understanding they become strong enough they can be constituted into a church. 
The church was formally organized in October 1852 with 19 members. On that day a constitution, setting forth the principles of the church was adopted upon its organization. The church was accepted as a member of Concord Association and remained a member until the Wilson County Association was organized in 1921. 
Meetings were held at the schoolhouse for a number of months. The ﬁrst permanent building was completed by the fall of 1852. It stood about a half mile from the present church on what is now known as Rocky Valley Road. It serves the congregation for 31 years until the second Sunday of October 1883 when the present building was dedicated. It should be noted that the work was done by men in the community regardless of church aﬃliation.
The Sunday school was organized at the February meeting (second Sunday) in 1871. On that day the pastor preached on the importance of Sunday school even though this movement was conﬁned mainly to the larger churches. The Sunday school has been in continuous operation since. 
During most of the 20th century the church met the second Sunday of every month except for a few years in the 1890’s when it was the fourth Sunday. For those earliest members one of their memories was that on the Second Lord’s Day of each month as the meeting day at Rocky Valley. 
The record of the December 1878 meeting is the last that that appears in the minute book that goes back to 1852. The next book must have been less substantial. It came in pieces and only exists as scattered leaves. No one has been able to extract a very accurate story of those years before 1832 when the church celebrated its 80th anniversary. Even the names of pastors were left up to the memory of church historians and others. In 1952 the church celebrated its centennial. 
Until 1948 the church met the second Sunday. Beginning in 1948 the church met the second the fourth Sunday until 1950 when the church went to full-time preaching. The ﬁrst pastorium was purchased in 1957, sold in 1959, and the present one was built in 1960.  



[image: ]Rocky Valley Baptist Church - 2021
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Rocky Valley Baptist Church - 1952

Pastors 1977 - Present
	Bro. Jerry Smith
	1977 – 1980

	Bro. Albert Bentley
	1980-1981

	Bro. Doug Cather, Interim
	1982

	Bro. Randy Sledge
	1983-1987

	Bro. Joseph H. Coleman
	1988-1994

	Bro. Wayne Jamison
	1999-

	Bro. Jason Lohorn
	2000-2005

	No Pastor
	2006

	Rev. Mark Rager
	2007-2011

	Rev. Nathan Thomason
	2012-2015

	Bro. Jason Mull
	2015-Present
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HISTORY OF ROUND LICK BAPTIST CHURCH
	For 217 years, this local church, in the small community of Watertown, has held forth the testimony of Jesus Christ.  Many lives have been touched and many souls have been saved because of the ministry of this great church.
Round Lick Baptist Church was constituted on July 2, 1803 in the private residence of Stephen Rogers in Smith County near the village of Grant on the waters of Round Lick Creek from which the church took its name.  There were only 16 members in the constitution.
The first regular pastor of the church, Brother James McCaleb, began work on June 6, 107.  Worship services were held in private homes while a small log house was built on land owned by Ezekiel Bass and located one mile north of Watertown.  In 1821 this log house was enlarged and later the Primitive Baptist Church was built a little to the south of the log meeting house.
In 1837 the church divided over the mission question.  The anti-mission group was in the majority and retained the church property.  At a meeting in December of 1837, 13 of the 25 making up the missionary group met and pronounced the minority group to be the original Round Lick Baptist Church.  With land donated by Henry Bass, a building was erected near the present building.  This building was replaced in 1857 with another frame building.  In 1903, on the same foundation, a brick building was built and dedicated on July 24, 1904.  The old sanctuary was part of that building.  In 1947 the two-story annex was added and later, additional rooms and restrooms.  
In 1921 messengers were sent to help create the Wilson County Baptist Association. The organization meeting took place at First Baptist Church in Lebanon. The messengers were Roy Patton, R.C. Bass, Mr. & Mrs. W.E. Wauford and Miss. Lera D. Wauford. Round Lick has been a supporter of the Association and its work ever since.
In 1951, the church voted to build a pastor’s home on the grounds.  In 1960, the church entered another building program and the front of the church was torn away and replaced with a porch and colonial columns. By July of 1974, the church decided to purchase 3.6 acres adjoining the church property, and a new educational annex consisting of a dining area, kitchen, two restrooms, and six Sunday School rooms was built.  It was dedicated on January 26, 1975 and later a carport was built on the east end of the two-story educational building.  A note burning service was held on Sunday morning, March 20, 1977 as all debts were paid and the church was debt free.
On July 16, 1981, lightning struck and destroyed the church steeple, damaging the vestibule and pastor’s study as well as the attic.  The repairs were made and the church decided to build two rooms between the old building and the educational annex, or Fellowship Hall, for a library and a pastor’s study.  
In August 1986, the church decided to purchase stained glass windows for the church and a dedication service was held on April 5, 1987.  Also in 1987, Round Lick Baptist Church was recognized by the Tennessee Baptist Convention as one of the top 50 churches across the state for baptisms under the leadership of Bro. Nicholas Holman.  In June of 1988, the church voted to call its first full-time associate pastor who later became pastor of the church.  In June of 1995, the church voted to call its first part-time minister of education.  
In February 1997, Bro. Terry Wilkerson was called as pastor.  Only three months passed until Round Lick experienced one of the greatest harvests of souls in its history.  During a revival with Dr. Harold Hunter, 98 people were saved in eight days and on a single Sunday, 52 people were baptized. The church moved into a new worship center in August 1999 to accommodate the church’s growth.  On that first day in “The New Building,” 18 people were saved.
More land was purchased in 2006 with plans of expanding the facility in the future, the land debt was paid for by 2010 and plans began for a new expansion. Many designs investigated and by 2015 the final design was selected. After much prayer and seeking God it was decided that the plan would include the razing of the original 1904 Worship facility. Before beginning on the education space, the fellowship hall had to be remodeled and updated. The new education space was finished in March of 2018 and created a much more functional connection to all the buildings. The Arise & Build campaign was started in 2017 to raise the capital to accomplish God’s plan on the hill.
During its 217-year history, Round Lick Baptist Church has had 46 different men to serve as pastor.  The last 14 have been V. R. Butler (1946-51), Norman O. Baker (1951-53), W. L. Brown (1954-59), Walter E. Phillips (1959-61), B. E. Rickman (1962-71), Joseph H. Trybone (1971-73), Eugene O. Schmid (1974-81), Jim Manley (1981-85), Nicholas Holman (1985-89), Bill Griffith (1989-91), Gary Odom (1992-96), Terry Wilkerson (1997-2004), Steve Mayle (2005-2014) and Jim Patton (2016-2020).  Twenty-one men have been ordained to the gospel ministry in our church, the last ten being Paul Hall, Raymond Patterson, Billy Blankenship, Enzo Mathis, Cecil Woodson, Alton Neville, Nathan Wilkerson, Wesley Taylor, Wayne Malone and Mark Cantrell. Members have gone from Round Lick Baptist Church to help organize seven other churches—Cedar Creek in 1820, Shop Springs in 1882, Poplar Hill in 1885, Commerce in 1891, Watertown in 1902 (name changed to First Baptist Watertown in 1924) and Crossroads Baptist Fellowship at Tuckers Crossroads in 2002.
The main emphasis at RLBC continues to be the “winning of the lost” to Jesus Christ.  It is only with God’s blessing and leadership that this mission will come to pass.   As seen in the past, when the people of Round Lick Baptist Church have stepped out in faith, God has been faithful and blessed this church.  If we continue to be committed to Jesus’ command in Matthew 28:19-20 – “Go ye therefore, and teach all nations, baptizing them in the name of the Father, and the Son, and of the Holy Ghost:  Teaching them to observe all things whatsoever I have commanded you: and, lo, I am with you always, even unto the end of the world” – He will continue to bless this church.  May this always be true, and may all who come behind us “Find Us Faithful” until He comes!

Saulsbury

Pastor: Glenn McDonald
Established: 1910
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Shop Springs Baptist Church

Shop Springs Baptist Church was constituted in a school house in the community of Shop Springs on January 28, 1882 by a group of members from Round Lick Baptist Church in Watertown who had requested their letters in December 1881 and January 1882. Later these members were joined by smaller group from Spring Creek Baptist Church on Linwood Road which had disbanded. Pastors presiding over the constituting of the church were Henry Bass and John T. Oakley, pastors of neighboring churches.

The first pastor of Shop Springs was J.W. Patton, a well-educated (college and seminary) man who later became the president of two colleges as well as the pastor of other churches.

Nelson Jimmerson Bryan donated two acres of land from his large surrounding farm upon which the young congregation built what Elder J.H. Grime called “a neat and commodious” house of worship. This building served the congregation well until 1928 when they felt led to build the building the church currently uses. Additions to the building for educational and fellowship space were made in 1956 and 1977. Additional land adjacent to the church was donated by John Nelson Bryan from the original farm in subsequent years. A parsonage adjacent to the church was built in 1944 to provide for a full-time pastor to live on the field.

Church programs at Shop Springs have consisted first of part time worship, Bible study every Sunday, membership and leadership training as those programs were developed by Southern Baptists, and always strong the Woman’s Missionary Union which has been active and strong for world mission supports.

Also from the beginning, in 1882 until 1888, the church was an active member of the Salem Association and it was a constituent member of the New Salem Baptist Association from 1888 until 1920 when Shop Springs became a constituent member of the Wilson County Baptist Association.

The church has always been fully supportive of the full range of Southern Baptist educational and mission activities. Ordained ministers and dedicated laymen have gone from Shop Springs to places all over the state of Tennessee, the United States, and the world serving the Lord Jesus Christ according to their individual gifts and calling. The number of these Christian servants who have their roots in this church would easily outnumber the resident membership at its peak. The fields of agri-business, education, and medicine and law enforcement have been the largest vocational fields. Those four fields of service continue to be strongly represented in the resident membership as well.

One example of this service is the testimony of Dr. Nelson A. Bryan, who upon graduation from Vanderbilt Medical School in 1917 announced to the next business meeting at Shop Springs that God was calling him to serve as a medical missionary to China. The church, largely through the Woman’s Missionary Union, corresponded with him and sent him funds throughout his ministry. Later his son practiced medicine in Temple, Texas and a grandson is on the foreign field in Hungary. His brother, Dr. Wert Bryan, practiced medicine and served Christ in Houston, Texas. Many others from Shop Springs have served Southern Baptist associations, state conventions, and the national convention in denominational offices. 

In addition to the special offerings for missions made annually – The Golden Offering, the Annie Armstrong Offering, the Lottie Moon Offering, and others sponsored by the denomination, the church has taken on special mission projects to meet needs on the mission fields of the world, whether local, state, national or international. One example is the support which was extended to Black Wolf Baptist Church in Pageton, West Virginia in 2002 which had been devastated by repeated flooding waters earlier in the year. The church, through the leadership of a WMU group carried several pick-up trucks filled with everything from food to Bibles to the church to be distributed to members.

Beginning in August of 1985 and continuing with August of 2012, Pastor Kenneth Tramel served as Baptist Student Union Director of Cumberland University in Lebanon and his wife, Peggy, served as the Secretary of the Wilson County Baptist Association from 1984 until 2011.

A few years ago the church gave support to an unnamed mission volunteer who went to an unnamed African country to reach out to unreached people groups. More recently the pastor of Shop Springs went to a location in North Africa for the same purposes.

The Shop Springs church has never been a large church by the world’s standards. In 1906 the membership was 185; in 1930 it was 258; and in 1955 it reached its peak at 299. This past year the membership was 255 and the average Sunday School attendance was 45. Nevertheless the mission outreach of the church continues until this day.
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	The history of what is now known as Silver Springs Baptist Church dates back to the Spring of 1950, when Bro. W.B. Woodall and Bro. E. C. Watkins held a tent revival in the Silver Springs Community located at Highway 70 and Benders Ferry Road in Mt. Juliet. Interest grew from this revival and in the fall of 1950, Sunday school classes began in the home of Mr. and Mrs. Russell Davis. Six months later, church services were held at the Davis home, led by Bro. J. C. Fuller. 

	In the spring of 1952, Mt. Juliet First Baptist Church voted to establish a church in the area known as The Silver Springs Mission. Bro. J. C. Fuller served as the first pastor. Preaching services were held in Mr. Harvey Prowell’s service station on Highway 70 and Sunday school was held in area homes. In the fall of 1952, Mrs. Alice Smith donated property at Highway 70 and Benders Ferry Road to be used for the construction of a church building. To finance the new church building, a “buy a block” campaign was started where members of the community made contributions and received a tiny paper block in exchange. On Easter Sunday of 1953, the first church service was conducted in the new building, led by Bro. J. C. Fuller (1951-1955). 
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	On September 25, 1955, Silver Springs Baptist Church was organized as a Southern Baptist Church with membership in the Wilson County Baptist Association. Sixty-eight charter members cast their membership in the new Silver Springs Baptist Church. Bro. David Stone (1955-1956) served as the pastor and was instrumental in the writing of the church constitution and by-laws. The first deacons were E.D. James, Charlie Vantrease, Billy Russell, and Russell Davis. 

	In the late 1950’s, Silver Springs Baptist Church was establishing itself in the community, souls were being saved, and membership was increasing. This led to an expansion of the original church with the addition of Sunday school space, a choir loft, and a nursery. Support for missions was strong during this time both locally and abroad. WMU and Brotherhood programs were established to promote mission work. Pastors during that time included Bro. C. E. Clay (1956-1958), Bro. David Stone (1958), and Bro. J. C. Fuller (1958-1960). 

	As the Lord continued to bless financially, a two-story addition was added in the early 60’s which provided additional Sunday school rooms for children and youth. RA’s, GA’s, and Acteens were active programs during the 60’s. In the late 60’s, a fellowship hall, kitchen, and bathroom facilities were added. Pastors serving Silver Springs Baptist Church in the 60’s included Bro. R. V. Butler (1961-1964), Bro. Doug O’Brien (1964-1967), and Bro. Oran Collins (1967-1969). 

	In the 70’s, Silver Springs Baptist Church, began an active outreach program to reach young families. To meet the needs of the expanding congregation, the sanctuary was expanded, a baptistry was installed, as well as the addition of a pastor’s study. In 1973, an additional four acres was purchased on the east side of the original building to provide for additional parking and recreational activities. Pastors leading during that time included Bro. Fred Gregg, Sr. (1969-1974) and Bro. Chuck Young (1975-1979).
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	By the early 1980’s, membership in the Silver Springs Baptist Church had grown from its original 68 charter members to more than 450 members. To meet the growing needs of the community, the sanctuary was enlarged with a new entrance foyer, and a pastor’s study and bathroom facilities were added. During this time, our church began its first organized Youth for Christ program. Bro. Thomas Smith was called as associate pastor in 1984 and established the senior adult ministry, now known as the Silver Springers. Pastors who served in the 80’s included Bro. Joe Estes (1979-1984) and Bro. Jonas Taylor (1985-1988). 
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In August of 1988, Silver Springs Baptist Church, called Bro. Russ Stephens as pastor, where he faithfully served for 30 years, retiring in August of 2018. Under his leadership, Silver Springs expanded its mission focus, increased giving to the Cooperative Program, expanded its community outreach efforts, revamped the preschool, children, and youth programs, and saw its membership increase to over 700 members. Facing the need for additional space, a new educational wing was built which included additional Sunday school rooms, nursery, youth facilities, and office space. The music ministry was expanded during this time with Theresa Stephens serving as church pianist under the leadership of our talented music ministry leaders. Bro. Russ and his wife, Theresa, were dedicated servants at Silver Springs Baptist church from 1988-2018. 

	In November of 2018, Bro. Matt Tullos was called as Transitional-Interim Pastor. Bro. Matt guided the church during the fifteen month transitional period helping to bridge the gap between our rich past and the future of our church. Under his leadership, the church developed a new mission statement and core values that encourage us to be more faithful servants and evangelize the community in which we serve.
	On February 23, 2020, Silver Springs Baptist Church called William Turner as its pastor. Despite the recent tornado, a pandemic, and all of the facets of adapting to a new church family, Pastor Will has steadily guided the congregation during this time. He has been instrumental in developing a media presence online, refocusing our mission efforts, as well as helping us to update and revise our church constitution and bylaws. We are grateful for Pastor Will’s leadership and are prayerfully looking forward to what God has in store for us in the years to come.
	Silver Springs Baptist Church has proudly served the Mt. Juliet community for 65 years. During this time, we have been blessed to have had thirteen pastors, one associate pastor, one transitional interim pastor, and sixteen dedicated staff members. God has richly blessed our congregation and we pledge to serve Him more in the days to come. While the past years have been exciting, we believe our best days are yet to come!
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Smith Fork Baptist Church

Smith Fork Baptist Church is located at 6755 Greenvale Road in the Statesville community of southern Wilson County at the headwaters of Smith Fork Creek. Bro. Richard Williams has been the pastor since 2019 making him the 41st pastor of the third oldest Southern Baptist Church constituted in Wilson County.

On the Smith Fork Creek, a settlement began about 1797 and was given the name Maryville, which would later be changed to Statesville. Many of its first settlers came from North Carolina and Virginia including a Revolutionary War soldier named Jesse Hodges. He came about 1798 from Virginia and a few years later in his home, a “prayer meeting” was started as an outreach of Big Cedar Lick Church (Mt. Olivet). Thus, “Hodges Meeting House” was actually the first name of this church. 



In the fall of 1805, Elder Joshua Lester arrived from Virginia and took charge of Hodges Meeting House, becoming the first pastor and soon moved to our present location. The first building was a log structure, which would later be replaced by a frame building. On May 17, 1806, this church was constituted into an independent church by Elder Lester and John Jones, pastor of Spring Creek. This church had a membership of 28 people and united with Cumberland Association that same year. In 1810, this church united with the Concord Association.

In 1812, the name was changed to Smith’s Fork. It was noted fifth people were baptized that year  and 100 in 1819. As early as 1821 this church had 235 members. In 1822, Smith’s Fork united with the Salem Association. Elder Lester was pastor of this church for 37 years and was laid to rest behind the church, as well as the next pastor, Elder H. W. Pickett.
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The early pastors and members of this church were instrumental in helping to start many nearby churches, including Marion, Auburn, Bradley’s Creek, Union (Hurricane), Falling Creek (Fall Creek), Ramah, Greenvale, Prosperity, and Enon. Smith’s Fork also ordained and sent out many ministers throughout the years.

Looking through old church minutes, we find the church in the 1870’s was heated with coal and lighted with candles and oil lamps. The Lord’s Supper was observed four times a year. In the 1880’s the church voted to let Sunday School have an organ.

On March 25, 1904, a heavy storm passed through and blew the church off its foundation and wrecked it. The church was repaired for $38.18 by November.

In 1906, the 100th Anniversary was celebrated with preaching in the grove to 2,000 plus. Afterwards, dinner was served and singing followed.

A cyclone blew the church down and destroyed it on April 29, 1909. Cost to rebuild was $915.80, not including the cupelos and the front window. Some lumber from the old church was used. The church was insured for $1,600 at $16.00 per year. 

In 1921, six members of Smith Fork were present at the first meeting of the new Wilson County Baptist Association.

Electric lights were installed by 1941 and the oil lamps were sold. The church voted to change preaching to “War Time Hour” (Daylight Savings). In 1945, preaching was held on the first and third Sundays. Hardwood floors and gas heat were added by 1951. A 150th Anniversary was celebrated in 1956. A purchase was made for oak benches, pulpit, and a communion table in 1959.

The first parsonage was built in 1966 on a donated lot across the road. The need for new Sunday School rooms were met in 1971 by an addition to the back of the church. Due to flooding problems, the parsonage was sold in 1985 and plans were made for a new parsonage to be built on church property after a copy of the church’s deed was found. In 1986, the church celebrated a Homecoming and a tour of the new parsonage.

In the 1990’s, more improvements were made to the church. Vinyl siding and windows were added to the auditorium, as well as new concrete porches with a ramp and rails. Louvered shutters were added to the windows inside the auditorium in 2000.

A 200th Anniversary Celebration was observed in 2006. Approximately 160 people attended including Pastor Eltis Brown, who served Smith Fork 26 years, and former pastors, James Davis and Richard Buckner. It was a catered event and singing followed.
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In 2018, a letter was received from a man that worked in a Baptist Retirement Center Thrift Store in San Angelo, Texas. He was searching for information on Smith Fork Baptist Church that had a connection to Jesse Hodges. He had come across a framed glass window pane with an attached plaque. That plaque read, “Glass from Smith Fork Baptist Church, Wilson Co., TN land given by Jessie Hodges 1816”. The Hodges family officially deeded the land to Smith Fork a short time before they left the area, taking with them something to remember and apparently passed down to their family. Now that window pane has made its way back to Smith Fork. 
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Well over 200 years have passed and our little country church is still welcoming her neighbors to attend. Many great preachers have preached in her pulpit. Many summer revivals have been held and countless numbers have been baptized in the neighboring streams. Children that attended here have been taught about Jesus by dedicated teachers. Smith Fork is our “Church Family” and we are sure many will also have memories of this church to pass down to their families.
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[image: ]This is a story of how God works, even in what appears to us to be the worst of times.  In early 2000, a series of events caused disunity and brokenness among members of a 100-year-old Baptist church in Mt. Juliet, Tennessee.  A group of its members began to pray for God’s guidance.  God provided the vision to start a new church.

Bill Patton, contacted Judy Monroe, the principal of Mt. Juliet High School, to inquire about the availability of the school as a meeting place.  The high school was available.  God provided a place to meet, at the same time, He provided a healing shepherd.  In a God moment, during that conversation, Mrs. Monroe mentioned a current teacher at the school as a possible preacher.

On Sunday, June 11, 2000, 108 people feeling disenfranchised from Green Hill Baptist Church met at Mt. Juliet High School. This group sought God’s mercy and grace.  That week, Bill Patton called Chuck Groover, an ordained pastor with experience in church starts, who was teaching world geography and coaching at the high school.  Bro. Groover preached at Victory for the first time on June 18, 2000.

On June 25, 2000, the name Victory Baptist Church was chosen.  During the next two months, a choir, Sunday School and a youth program were all established.  Women on Mission began to meet shortly thereafter.

On August 20, 2000, Chuck Groover was called unanimously as interim pastor.  At this time, worship attendance was over 300, with 220 in Sunday School attendance.

Our first baptismal service was held September 10, 2000, at Cedar Creek.  Four people were baptized.  Approximately 200 people attended the service.  After outgrowing the facility at Cedar Creek, later baptisms were held at YMCA’s Camp WIdjiwagan.

In October 2000, Victory joined the Wilson County Baptist Association and Chuck Groover was called as pastor.  Due to his commitment to the school, it was agreed that he would serve part-time until the end of the school year.

On November 12, 2000, the Constitution and By-laws were adopted. Approximately 90 people joined Victory on the last Sunday of November.  Victory Baptist Church was constituted with 318 charter members.

God provided the perfect location to be dedicated to His kingdom’s work.  On February 18, 2001, members voted to purchase 30.7 acres on Tate Lane from Mrs. Katherine Freeman.  She shared that it had been Mr. Freeman’s (her late husband) desire to have a church on that property setting on that hillside.  The purchase price was $552,600. By year’s end, the property loan was paid in full.

On June 25-29, 2001, shortly after our one-year anniversary of organizing, our first Vacation Bible School was held.  VBS has been held every year since.

September 30—October 3, 2001, brought the first tent revival to be held on Victory’s very own property. Victory has held several tent revivals since that time.  We had a number of meetings on Pumpkin Hill, owned by the Moss family.

On May 5, 2002, a building committee and an architect were chosen.  A master construction plan was presented and approved on December 15, 2002.  The original building loan was $4 million.  Membership by now was 454.

A ground breaking service was held on May 18, 2003.  Evacuation did not begin until August.  Becoming a beacon to the community, the steeple was placed on the building on June 30, 2004.  As the building neared completion, a Bible was placed in the floor cavity directly beneath the pulpit so that whoever was speaking would be “standing on God’s Word.”  Before the carpet was laid, members were invited to write their names and favorite Bible verses on the steps to the platform in the worship center or on the floor in the Sunday School classrooms.

On November 7, 2004, the building was complete.  Victory held a short farewell service at Mt. Juliet High School and then formed a caravan and traveled to the new facility for our first service in our very own space that the Lord had provided for worship.

After settling into the new facility, Victory began to put our building to use to reach out to the community.  Mother’s Day Out was established in January 2005.  It now runs a double track and serves the families of 214 preschoolers.

Through the years, countless numbers of people have passed through our doors for a variety of reasons.  Our building has been used by community groups such as Rotary, Kiwanis, Fellowship of Christian Athletes, Pregnancy Crisis Center, Living Sent, Mt. Juliet Senior Center, Wilson Bank Fall Craft Fair, Spring Fling, Fall Festival, wild game feasts, numerous funerals, school programs and graduations, the Jazz Alliance, Middle Tennessee Performing Arts Academy and more.  

Through the years, we have hosted a variety of musical groups, beginning with youth choirs from Texas and Alabama.  Performances ranged from the Booth Brothers and Classic Imperials to Union University Singers. 

Use of the property extended beyond the building.  In 2006, a pavilion was constructed by members.  It is used for church events, weddings, birthday parties, Boy Scout and Girl Scout meetings and Gideon and Rotary cookouts.  We host an annual Easter egg hunt and our largest event---a Fall festival.  Open to the entire community, whether hot or cold weather, hundreds of families come to Victory to enjoy the food, games, inflatables, pony rides and music and followed by trunk or treat.  A softball field, available for church and community use was constructed in 2016,

In August 2009, God inspired Bill Denton to start Plus 1 ministry, a collection of food to support the Mt. Juliet Help Center.  The first week of collection netted 402 pounds of food.  Members are encouraged to buy and bring an extra can of food each week.  Collection bins are located near each of the main church entrances.  We also do a special collection for Thanksgiving baskets.  Each week, the ministry team delivers the food to the Help Center.  In 2019, Victory members contributed an estimated 15,200 pounds of food (approximately 30% of the centers yearly collected donations).

Victory also began to reach out beyond our community.  Victory’s first out-of-state mission trip was a Youth trip to Gulfport, Mississippi in June 2006.  The following year a group of adults returned to Gulfport to continue to rebuild.  We have sent multiple teams to Cincinnati, Ohio and Hyannis, Massachusetts.  Victory currently is financially supportive of Harbor Church in Hyannis, Massachusetts.  Harbor Church is in our budget for financial support annually.  We are also supportive of Mt. Carmel Church in inner city Nashville.  We support Mt. Carmel financially and have conducted Vacation Bible School there.  Our men have done extensive upgrading to their building and facilities also.  Currently, a congregation of Egyptian Christians is meeting at our facility while they are building their own.  

Victory’s first international mission trip was to Ecuador in October 2011.  Since then we have sent teams to Costa Rico and Canada.  For the past five years, Victory has worked with members of several area churches to serve the Canadian Baptist Seminary in Cochrane, Alberta.

Many others are involved in a variety of mission projects.  Each month a ministry team prepares and serves meals at the Nashville homeless shelter, Room in the Inn.  Women on Mission, GAs, Youth and Sunday School classes participate in projects such as collecting and delivering backpacks filled with food and school supplies for area children in need, gathering supplies for area women’s shelter, Christmas gifts/food for families.  Backpacks for Appalachian children for Christmas gifts and Operation Christmas Child through Samaritan’s purse is promoted annually.  

In September 2008, a second morning worship was added.  We currently offer a traditional worship service at 8:30 AM, Sunday School at 9:45 AM and a modern worship service at 10:00 AM. 

In the Fall of 2014, our TV Ministry was begun.  A delayed recording of our morning worship service is played on WHTN several times throughout the week.  In January 2015, Victory began live streaming our worship services.  Our services can now be viewed on Facebook Live, YouTube Live as well as Roku.

We have always had an active group of Senior adults. In 2011, they became a little more organized and became known as the Golden Nuggets.  This group has a monthly activity, frequently traveling by bus to visit historic sites or other places of interest.  Of course, an eating establishment is always involved.  The first chartered bus trip was to Amish country in Pennsylvania in the Spring of 2019.

In addition to ongoing contributions to Cooperative Program and the Wilson County Baptist Association; Victory supports all mission offerings of the Southern Baptist Convention and the Tennessee Baptist Convention Mission Board.  

In June, 2017, our mortgage was paid in full.  That Summer, major renovations, particularly to increase security for our kids, were made to the Children’s and Youth areas of the building. 

Current membership is 1273 (as of 1/5/2020).  We currently have 6 professional staff positions and three administrative support staff.  Dr. Chuck Groover is our Senior Pastor and our founding pastor. Andrew Coleman joined the staff in 2007 as an intern and is now Executive Pastor, Judd Hill is serving as Interim Student/Youth Pastor and Caleb Turner is Associate Student/Youth Pastor.  Kyle Clifton is Children’s Pastor.  Joel Vaugh joined us in 2017 and he leads our modern worship serve as well as Youth worship.  After 11 years as Minister of Music and Senior Adults, Jim Murray retired in September 2019.  Scott Miller is currently serving as Interim Music Minister.  Dr. Todd Capps joined us in December 2019 as Discipleship and Senior Adult Pastor.  

November 1, 2020 was Victory Baptist Church’s 20th Anniversary.  Due to COVID 19, a Big Celebration had to be placed on hold.  We plan to celebrate in the Spring of 2021.  

Our scheduling includes weekly worship services, Sunday School, discipleship classes, Bible studies, small groups, choir, missions, as well as special events for children, students and senior adults.  During the school year, we have Wednesday night dinners available for families who come for Wednesday meetings and various classes.  Additional food is prepared and delivered to the homebound among our church family.  They get a friendly visit and a hot meal.  

As we bring this story of God’s blessing to a close, we want to note that God also provided healing for those who remained at Green Hill Church, and it is once again a thriving church in our community.  The two churches now work in harmony to serve HIM.  God is good and Victory Baptist Church has witnessed the blessing of His goodness unfold before our eyes for the past 20+ years. We must not become complacent—the world needs to know Our Savior.  We must take His challenging commission to go into ALL the world with His glorious gospel.  Matthew 28: 19-20

Thanks be to God, who gives us the victory through our Lord Jesus Christ.  1 Corinthians 15:57 HCSB
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Vine Baptist Church
The history of Vine Baptist begins with the interest of Rev. Robt. E. DeLozier and Bro. Richard Wrather and the encouragement of the people at Vine. Their distance from a church, their hunger for the Baptist message. The cooperation in securing an old abandoned school building, the willing hands that took hold to fix up and keep up all these things. 

On Wednesday, August 10, 1960, having been approached about conducting a revival at Vine, we met at Hurricane Baptist and voted to sponsor the revival. From the first service it was unusual. Failure to have the building wired, we had to use coal oil lamps. God seemed to have used this for a beginning. It closed on August 31, 1960. 

On September 17, 1960 as pastor of Hurricane Baptist, Rev. DeLozier was named to act as moderator protem. Upon motion and second, he was elected by acclamation. For business purposes a name was necessary and upon motion and second, Vine Baptist Mission was chosen. On Wednesday night, May 27, 1961, Rev. J. H. Barrett from Rock Hill, South Carolina began a revival. There were 17 professions and were all baptized. 

On June 4, 1961, having contacted Bro. Harry F. Nichols, pastor of Gladeville Baptist, he led his church to consent giving our new converts a church home and on June 11, 1961, 16 were baptized including Frank E. Gannon who professed at home, and the same night he made us an offer of a building site for our church. 

On July 5, 1961, we voted to accept the building site. On Sunday, October 1, 1961, Vine Baptist mission from Gladeville Baptist was constituted into a Missionary Baptist Church.

I.	Bro. W.B. Woodall, associational missionary for Wilson County was named moderator. 
II.	Sgt. Smith, Powell’s Chapel, Concord, devotional and prayer.
III.	Bro. Harry F. Nichols, pastor Gladeville Baptist, Wilson Assoc., read the blanket letter and released the names that constitute Vine Baptist Church.
IV.	Beginning that, two more names were received from Berryville Baptist Church.
V.	Bro. John Drayer, Powell’s Chapel, Concord Assoc. read the articles of Faith which were adopted.
VI.	Bro. Harry F. Nichols, Wilson County Assoc. read the church covenant, which was adopted.
VII.	Bro. Smith & family brought a special number in song.
VIII.	Bro. Robt. E. DeLozier was elected pastor of Vine Baptist, Alice Newman, Treas., Helen Gannon, clerk.
IX.	Bro. Raymond Patterson, pastor of Rocky Valley Baptist, brought the message of the occasion, “Come, Tarry, Go.”
X.	Bro. Oscar Nash, Nashville Assoc., lead in prayer of consecration.
XI.	The hand of fellowship was given the new church by the visiting Brethren.




HISTORY OF WEBB’S BAPTIST CHAPEL
120 Davis Road
Lebanon, Tennessee 37087

In September 1981, the Brotherhood of LaGuardo Baptist Church reorganized after being non-active for more than twenty years. Bennett Jennings was elected Director and President, Hayward Gray, Vice-President, Clayton Gray, Missions Activity Leader, Julian Stone, Mission Study Leader and Gerald Ray, Secretary-Treasurer. 

At the October 21 meeting, the men voted to become involved in the Tennessee Disaster Relief program as soon as possible and to investigate the possibility of an Outreach Sunday School Class. A door- to- door survey was conducted in the Possum Town community on Sunday, November 22 by the Baptist men and WMU ladies. It was discovered a number of the residents did not attend church, were lost, or were members of other churches but did not attend. 

Mrs. Rosa Webb, an elderly member of LaGuardo Baptist Church and a resident of Possum Town agreed to open her home for a Sunday School class. On November 29, 1981, seven people attended the first class. Those present: Bennett Jennings, Clayton and Robbie Gray, Mrs. Rosa Webb, Miss Nina Burton, Mrs. Estelle Jackson and Mr. Leslie Bennett. 

After about six months of in-home Sunday School, the Baptist men voted to sponsor a Mission Bible School and a Tent Revival. A tent was borrowed from the Nashville Association and the events were held July 18-24, 1982. Fifty attended the Bible School and as a result of community involvement, a building fund was started with $300.00. The Sunday School class soon outgrew Mrs. Webb’s home and in December 1982, the Baptist men were able to borrow a mobile chapel from New Duck River Association from Lewisburg. The mobile chapel was placed on land owned by Mrs. Mattie Gray, a member of LaGuardo Baptist Church and the first Sunday School was held on January 2, 1983.  A second Mission Bible School and Tent Revival was held in August 1983 resulting in many being saved, baptized and joining the fellowship of LaGuardo. 

The Baptist men realized what had started as a Mission Sunday School was growing into a church type mission. They asked LaGuardo Baptist Church to take over what they had begun. Attendance and the building fund continued to grow. Many expressed an interest in a building. A committee was formed to seek out a suitable tract of land and to apply for a grant from the Tennessee Baptist Convention Missions Department.

An acre and a half tract of land was purchased from Mr. and Mrs. James Chamberlain. Mrs. Chamberlain is the daughter of Dr. Sam McFarland, a prominent physician in Wilson County.  Plans were drawn up for a two- story concrete and brick building at the construction cost of $65,000. This cost did not include heating and air, carpeting and water. After much discussion, it was determined the Baptist men would do the work themselves. A ground breaking and dedication was held on October 16, 1983. 


Dan and Teddy Stewart, members of LaGuardo, volunteered to do the dozier work in preparation for the building. They worked from January 28-30, 1984. The footing was started on February 4 and finished on February 16. On Saturday, February 18, Rev. Pat O’Kain from Greenbrier came and helped the volunteers get started laying the blocks. On that day, Ed Jackson was given the official/unofficial title of Construction Foreman. 

On March 17, 1984 a group of men came from West Tennessee to work on the building. The ladies of LaGuardo provided meals for the workers for the 24 weeks of construction. They also worked on the construction project itself.  A total of fifty-five different people worked on the building. During the 24 consecutive work Saturdays, the men were never rained out. 

During the construction of the building, God met our needs many times. A central heat-air unit was donated by Silver Springs Baptist Church, carpet was donated by Immanuel Baptist Church, Bobby Stone, a former member of LaGuardo, dug the water well and a group of Baptist men from Ebenezer Baptist Church in Greenbrier supplied the material and built the front porch. 

The first service was held in the basement of the new building on June 1, 1984. 

Webb’s Chapel called her first pastor, Rev. Lewis Thomas August 6, 1984.

As of February 1986, the only paid labor was hauling the concrete and gravel, installation of storm windows, guttering, some tile work at the front entrance and the brick laying.  The estimated value of the building is $75,000 with the expense of $24,000. 

The church was constituted on January 17, 1988 with thirty-four charter members. Five charter members are currently attending. They are Gene Atnip, Gloria and Richard Gray and Elaine and Jimmy Smith. 

The church continued to grow from 34 charter members and annual giving of $12,600 in 1988 to 110 members and $43,801 total giving by 2001. By 2007, enrollment had grown to 149 and giving $92,285. 

Under the leadership of Rev. James Corley and the deacon body, it was determined we needed to increase the size of the church building. On June 20, 2007 a Building Committee was selected – David Thompson, Johnny Bush, Richard Gray, Jimmy Smith and Paul Thompson. By that time the church had already created a building fund and had accumulated $53,478.36. In February 2009, the Building Committee recommended we start construction on the new addition in phases. Phase I would be to get appropriate permits and pay required fees, hire a contractor, excavation, rough plumbing and electrical work, concrete, frame work to get the building dried in and build a retention pond. The committee recommended we start with the money in the building fund and transfer up to $30,000 from the General Fund before we borrowed money to proceed. During this time period, the church was under the leadership of an interim pastor, Rev. Jack Sprinkle. It’s important to note that deacons and church members did not let that stop or slow down the progress of the construction of the addition – a big leap of faith. 

On April 2, 2009 a contract was signed with Kenny England to build the addition for cost plus ten percent, estimated cost $250,000.  The Building Fund account was depleted by June 2009 so the trustees borrowed an initial $150,000 from Wilson Bank and Trust. On July 18, 2009, a special Sunday night service was held in the basement portion of the new building. We had an ice cream supper and those attending took black markers and wrote scripture verses all over the framework both upstairs and downstairs. In October 2009, members assembled a time capsule to be opened in 2034. The capsule was placed in the ceiling of the fellowship hall. In November 2009, the congregation moved downstairs to the kitchen/fellowship hall for services so the new portion of the building could be connected to the old.  The total cost of the new addition was $337,977.

The first service in the new auditorium was held in March 2010. The addition doubled the size of the church.  A baptistry, sound room, office space, 2 Sunday School class rooms were added upstairs and the two existing bathrooms were remodeled.  A new kitchen with appliances was added downstairs as well with storage space, 7 classrooms and 3 bathrooms. We added 18 additional parking spaces to the parking lot.

In 2019, church membership is 155 and annual giving is $55,147.  Since the church was constituted in 1988, Webb’s Chapel has had a total of 269 members and 84 baptisms all because of one woman’s desire to be able to have Sunday School. 
 
The following pastors have served Webb’s Chapel:

Reverends Lewis Thomas 1984-1989 
Kenneth Wilson 1989-1992
Bill Fowler 1993-1994 
John Evans 1994 
Dannie Bell 1994-1998 
Dan Dozier 1998-2005 
W. L. Baker 2005 
James Corley 2005-2008 
Jack Sprinkle 2008-2010  
Brody Ferrell 2010-Present 





















History of West Haven Baptist Church, Lebanon, TN

On May 3, 2006 a group of Christians from various churches in Lebanon met to discuss planting a church in West Lebanon.  On 5-17-06 the group met again to elect trustees and incorporate as a church.  The group asked Dr. Jonathan Richerson to serve as the pastor of the newly formed church and join their efforts in organizing.  On May 28, 2006 the new church assembled for the first time at Walter J. Baird Middle School in Lebanon.  Over the next few months the organizers of the church met with one another to discuss the name, location and polity.  It was agreed upon that the name would be West Haven to signify the location in Lebanon and a desire to be a spiritual haven for all who would attend. It was further agreed upon that the church would seek partnership with the Tennessee Baptist Convention, establishing itself as a member of the Southern Baptist Convention.  From July 2 to August 27, 2006 the church sought out Charter Members who would identify themselves as founders of West Haven Baptist Church of Lebanon, TN.  There were 90 Christians who identified with this founding.  On September 10, 2006 the first Sunday School classes were offered with a total Sunday School membership of 75.  It was during this period that the church submitted itself for membership with the Wilson County Association of Baptists.    

On April 8, 2007 the church voted to purchase 17 acres at the intersection of HWYs 70 and 109 in Lebanon.  The property was closed on September 7 of that year and is the current location of the church.  On January 9, 2008 the church began Wednesday evening services at the church property.  (The church held all services at WJB until this point)  The first body of six deacons was elected in January of 2008.  Jerry Triplett was elected Chairman.  On February 15, 2009 the church voted to appoint a Building Committee to explore building opportunities.  On May 31, 2009 the church burned the note for the property paying off a debt of $1.25 Million.

The first Vacation Bible School on the church property (5860 Lebanon Road) was held in June of 2009.  On November 20 of 2009 the church took the first bids for a building. The church raised $300,000 and borrowed $1.1 Million.  In the spring of that year, the church broke ground and construction began.  John Sloan of Hardaway Construction was lead on the project and it was completed in December of 2010.  
The church has held many baptisms, weddings and funerals since this date.   

In February of 2018 the church paid off and burned the note on the church building, making the church debt free once again.  In August of 2018 the church purchased the adjacent property, including 5 acres and a house.  In May of 2020 the church paid this note in full.  In September of 2020 the church renovated the house on the adjacent property transforming it into a Student Center.  

In 2008 the church hired Joel Thacker as Children’s minister, a role that he has expanded to include all students and he continues to this date.  The church has had a number of worship leaders from its founding.  In 2020 the church called Chris Chavez to fill the role.  Dr. Jonathan Richerson continues to serve as pastor.  

Present active membership is 185, with a membership roll of 275.   


West Hills Baptist Church/Hope Baptist Church
Established in 1998/Name Changed in 2020

West Hills Baptist Church began as a result of the closing of Trinity Baptist Church, whose membership had declined to twenty to thirty active members with no permanent pastor. A car dealership, which was nearby wanted to purchase the Church’s property. The church had considered relocation, so it was decided to sell the property and reorganize at a different location. Under the leadership of Director of Missions, Michael Pearson, Interim pastor, Jimmy Furr, Deacon and Trustee of the church the decision was made to close out Trinity and begin anew. The charter and founding members of WHBC were the still active members of the Trinity congregation.

The Church’s new name would be West Hills Baptist Church as God had miraculously provided a new location, on which the church would relocate after a building was constructed. WHBC was required to become a mission for one year, sponsored by First Baptist Church of Lebanon, TN. In the meantime, the church continued to meet in the former Trinity building.

The church was in need of a permanent pastor so a search was made and Jonas Taylor, a former resident of middle TN, who was pastor of a church in Maryland at that time, answered the call and became the first pastor of West Hills BC. When asked the question as to what he planned to do for the growth of the church, his reply was: Preach the word and the people will come, and they did.

Under the direction of Rev. Taylor, Rev. Pearson the church leaders, M.D. Henslee and Cyril Cathcart, and many volunteer workers, and trusting in God, the building was completed in record time and the congregation moved to the new location on Leeville Pike. Enough money had been received for the former property to pay for the purchase of the lane and the building, with no debt.

WHBC was very active and involved in Missions and Outreach and kept growing in membership. It became known as a friendly and loving church and continued to grow in number by souls being saved and people from other churches joining the congregation.

In 2002 a second addition to the building was completed for fellowship and worship, including a family center – a gym, bathrooms, several more Sunday School rooms, a larger kitchen and several classrooms on the second floor level for the Youth Department.

West Hills always had an outstanding Vacation Bible School each year with a record-breaking attendance for years. The youth were very mission minded and participated in local missions and mission trips to other states and towns to minister to people and there were also active G.A.’s and R.A.’s and Mission Friends groups supported by the W.M.U. of the WHBC.

The church had a sanctuary choir and a senior choir, a fifty plus ministry, an intercessory prayer program, and each year a festival to which the neighborhood and surrounding area were invited to attend for fellowship with the church members.

The Church had been so blessed and now, having over five hundred members, was conducting two services on Sunday mornings, that they started to contemplate adding a third addition with a much larger sanctuary. So it came to pass that the church decided to add the third addition, which was completed in 2006. It included a sanctuary with balcony, music room, office complex, bathrooms, and an entrance foyer. However, the new addition had gone so far over what it was supposed to be that the church ended up with a large debt.

In the year 2008 WHBC celebrated their ten-year anniversary, with thanksgiving and praise to the Lord God for all that had been accomplished through His leadership.

Through the next few years, the church kept growing but also some members started leaving the congregation for various reasons, moving , joining other congregations, etc. As the church body declined it was difficult for the remaining members to meet the debt obligation and maintain the Church’s needs.

Bro. Jonas Taylor, pastor, retired in 2015 and the church was without a pastor so the church acquired an interim pastor for the next year. After the end of that year, Bro. Stan Blades, worship minister and Bro. Ross Lock, youth minister, who had been ordained as ministers during their years at WHBC, filled in the position. (There were also three other men who were ordained as ministers during their membership time at WHBC.)

After much searching and prayer from all the church for God to send a pastor, Mike Bradshaw and the Pastor Search Committee, presented Rev. Will McReynolds, who was pastor of a church in the eastern part of the state to the church and he was called by the church, and in faith, he became pastor in November of 2017.

As attendance had fallen even more during the preceding years, and although some new people joined, the church was still in financial trouble.

In 2018-19 another Christian church approached WHBC leadership several times about purchasing West Hills building and land. This church had outgrown their current facility and needed a much larger facility than the one in which they were in currently operating. After much prayer and deliberation, the church felt that the Lord was leading them in this direction so West Hills, stepping out in faith and trusting in the Lord for guidance, decided to sell the property to the other church group in 2019 and move to a new location where they might reach more people with the Gospel of Christ and minister to them.

A building became available for lease in the Lebanon Outlets Mall so the church moved there until the Lord shows them a new permanent location. Due to relocation to a different area of Lebanon, the decision was made to change the name from West Hills Baptist Church to Hope Baptist Church, in October of 2020. Mission being reaching Lebanon, the nation and the world with the Hope and love of Jesus Christ our Savior, reaching out to every person they can, to share the love and mercy and hope in the Savior.

HOPE BAPTIST CHURCH  (WHBC) is now located in the Lebanon Prime Outlets Mall, Suite 530 Lebanon, TN: Between Highway 231 South and Old Murfreesboro Road

Pastor: Will McReynolds   Worship Minister: Stan Blades  Youth Minister: Ross Lock

Children Worship: Alan Hardin

Music Program for Children, Youths (including a youth band) and Adults
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